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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Physicswallah Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Physicswallah Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs). as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements’ section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the “Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute nf Chartered Acconntants of India together with the ethical reauirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
The Director’s report is not made available to us as at the date of this auditor’s report. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misctatement, whether due ta fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s renort
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022. included in these standalone
financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion

on thoge statements on Sentember 21 2027

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

|.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards

(e)

()

()

(h)

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021
specified under section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure 2” to this report;

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2023;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the note 47(vi) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the note 47(vii) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and
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c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v.  No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

vi. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Vineet Kedia

Partner

Membership Number: 212230
UDIN: 23212230BGSS1J9761

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: December 24, 2023
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Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Physicswallah Private Limited (‘the Company’)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account

and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state
that:

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property plant and equipment and investment property, except
for Leasehold improvement, where fixed assets register is to be updated in relation to include its
quantitative details and situations thereof.

(a)(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(b) All Property, Plant and Equipment, which were planned to be verified during the year, were
not physically verified by the management in the current year in accordance with a planned
programme of verifying them over a period of two years. No material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

(c) There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets during
the year ended 31 March 2023

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

(a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate. Inventories lying with third parties have been confirmed by them as
at March 31, 2023 and no discrepancies were noticed. Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate

for each class of inventory were noticed on such physical verification and have been properly
dealt with in the books of account.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of
security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(a) During the year, the Company has provided loans, to companies, firms or any other parties as
follows:
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Amount in Lakhs

Particulars L.0ans
Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year
- Subsidiary 3,500
- Others (Employee Loans) 133
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases

2,501
- Subsidiary

73

- Others (Employee Loans)

(b) During the year, the Company has not provided guarantees and security to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. During the year, the investments
made and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and
investments to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties are not
prejudicial to the Company's interest. However, in respect of loan granted to the subsidiary and
one of the employee, the loan is repayable on demand and repayment schedule for principal and
interest has not been stipulated in the agreement.

(¢) In respect of a loan granted to the subsidiary and one of the employcce, the schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has not been stipulated in the agreement. Hence,
we are unable to make a specific comment on the regularity of repayment of principal and payment
of interest in respect of such loan.

(d) There are no amount of loans granted to employees which are overdue for more than ninety
days.

(e) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties which was fallen due during the year, that have been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues ot existing loans given to the
same parties.

(f) As disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements, the Company has granted loans or advances
in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Of these
following are the details of the aggregate amount of loans or advances in the nature of loans
granted to promoters or related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act,
2013:

All Parties Employee Loans Related
Parties

Aggregate amount of loans/
advances in nature of loans 3,525 25 3,500
- Repayable on demand
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(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Percentage of loans/ advances in 100% 1% 99%

nature of loans to the total loans

Loans, investments, guarantees and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable have been complied with by the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company.

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including service tax, cess and other statutory dues have generally
been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay ina
few cases in relation to Labour Welfare Fund Act, Professional Tax Act, Tax Deducted as source,
Equalisation Levy and Goods & Service Tax. According to the information and explanations given
to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, undisputed dues in respect of professional
tax which was outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date

they became payable, are as follows:

Statement of Arrears of Statutory Dues Outstanding for More than Six Months

Name of the | Nature of | Amount | Period to | Due Date  of | Remarks, |
[ Statute the Dues (Rs.) which the | Date Payment | if any |
amount
| I. relates | ‘
Professional Tax | Professional 7,310 | Apr-2022 | 15-05- 19-06- |
Act Tax 2022 2023
Professional Tax | Professional | 11,048 | Apr—2022 | 15-05- Not paid
Act Tax 2022 till date
Professional Tax | Professional 7,600 | May - 2022 | 15-06- 19-06-
Act Tax 2022 2023 |
Professional Tax | Professional | 11,308 | May —2022 | 15-06- Not paid
Act Tax 2022 till date
Professional Tax | Professional 9,060 | June—2022 | 15-07- 19-06-
Act Tax 2022 2023
Professional Tax | Professional | 13,624 | June - 2022 | 15-07- Not paid
Act Tax 2022 till date
Professional Tax | Professional | 13,530 | July —2022 | 15-08- 19-06-
Act Tax 2022 2023 |
Professional Tax | Professional | 17,554 | July —2022 | 15-08- Not paid
Act Tax 2022 till date
Professional Tax | Professional | 28,360 | Aug —2022 | 15-09- 19-06-
Act Tax 2022 2023
Professional Tax | Professional | 30,505 | Aug —2022 | 15-09- Not paid
Act Tax 2022 till date
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(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(x1)

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, and other
statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thercon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(¢) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(¢) On an overall examination of the tinancial statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the ycar on the pledge of securities held in s
subsidiaries. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any moncy during the year by way of initial public ofler / further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has complied with provisions of sections 42 and 62 of the Companies Act, 2013
in respect of the preferential allotment / private placement of shares fully or partially during the
year. The amount raised, have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised except
for surplus funds amounting to Rs 79,120 Lakhs which were not required for immediate utilization
and which have been gainfully invested in liquid investments payable on demand. The maximum
amount of idle/surplus funds invested during the year was Rs 79,120 Lakhs, of which Rs 42,574
Lakhs was outstanding at the end of the year.

(a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistleblower complaints received by
the Company during the year.
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(xi1)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable
to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order
insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) We were unable to obtain any of the internal audit reports of the Company under the provisions
of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, hence the internal audit reports have not been entirely
considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report
on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

The previous statutory auditors of the Company have resigned during the year and we have taken
into consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 46 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
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of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

(xx)  (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with
second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note
34(1i) to the financial statements.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred
to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies
Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 34(ii) to the financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004

(ot

per Vineet Kedia

Partner

Membership Number: 212230
UDIN: 23212230BGSS1J9761

Place: Gurugram
Date: December 24, 2023
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ANNEXURE ‘2’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PHYSICSWALLAH PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We were engaged to audit the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of
Physicswallah Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2023, in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and
the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the exlent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. both issued by ICAL

Because of the matter described in Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph below, we were not able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on internal financial controls with
reference to these standalone financial statements of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Disclaimer of Opinion
According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not established its internal

financial control with reference to financial statements on criteria based on or considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAIL Because of thjg reason, we are
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unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our opinion whether the Company
had adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements as at March 31, 2023 and
whether such internal financial controls were operating effectively. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on Internal Financial Controls with reference to these standalone financial statements.

Explanatory paragraph

We also have audited, in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by ICAl, as specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act, the financial statements of the Company, which comprise the Balance Sheet as
at March 31, 2023, and the related Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information, and our report dated December 24, 2023 expressed unmodified opinion. We
have considered the disclaimer reported above in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests
applied in our audit of the financial statements of the Company, and the disclaimer does not affect our opinion
on the financial statements of the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Vineet Kedia

Partner

Membership Number: 212230
UDIN: 23212230BGSS1J9761

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: December 24, 2023



Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: U80900UP2020PTC129223

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Notes  Maren 31,2023 March 31, 2022
COUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 3 1,266.67 600.00
Reserves and surplus 4 93,807.99 9,868.96
Share options 5 2,963.23 -
98,037.89 10,468.96
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 6 6,678.20 -
Other long-term liabilities 7 1,893.26 -
Long-term provisions 8 253.46 57.16
8,824.92 §7.16
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 9 3,076.96 -
Trade payables 10
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,468.81 6.32
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 2,672.67 108.60
and small enterprises
Other current liabilities 1 2838881 6,419.58
Short-term provisions 12 400.60 4.60
36,007.85 6,539.10
Total 1,42,870.66 17,065.22
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment 13 11,694.16 1,199.89
Capital work in progress 13 47571 -
Intangible assets 14 4,428.53 124.53
Intangible assets under development 15 4753 560.72
Non-current investments 16 28,832 09 2,292 36
Deferred tax assets (net) 17 955 85 219
Long-term loans and advances 18 2,654.76 140.99
Other non-current assets 19 9,749 .04 5,869.11
58,837.67 10,189.79
Current assets
Current investments 16 20,404 18 1,494 51
Inventories 20 2,134.03 520.81
Trade receivables 21 580.22 13.06
Cash and bank balances 22 48,588.16 4,008.92
Short-term loans and advances 23 3,988.66 533.02
Other current assets 24 8.337.74 305.11
84,032.99 6,87543
Total 1,42,870.66 17,065.22
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements 1-52

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Chartered Accountants
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Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: U80900UP2020PTC129223

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes Year ended Year ended
o March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
I Revenue
Revenue from operations 25 77,176.63 23,247.77
Other income 26 2,626.85 162.05
Total income (I) 79,803.48 23,409.82
IT Expenses
Direct expenses 27 6,832.90 2,097.89
. Purchase of traded goods sold 28 6,432.95 1,479.31
Change in inventories of traded goods 29 (2,438.87) (520.81)
Employee benefits expense 30 40,651.98 421844
Finance costs 31 296.32 3246
Depreciation and amortization expense 32 3,340.37 33148
Impairment on intangible assets 33 746.86 -
Other expenses 34 21,837.80 2,677.54
Total expenses (II) 77,700.31 10,316.31
III Profit before tax (I-1I) 2,103.17 13,093.51
IV Tax expense
Current tax 1,452.00 3,321.66
Deferred tax (953.66) (3.51)
Total tax expense (IV) 498.34 3,318.15
V Profit for the year (III-IV) 1,604.83 9,775.36
Earnings per equity share of face value of INR 1 each attributable
to equity holders of the Company (EPS) 35
Basic 267 1629
Diluted 253 1629
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements 1-52
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Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: US0900UP2020PTC129223

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 2,103,17 13,093.51
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3,024,71 325.82
Amortisation of intangible assets 315.66 5.66
Impairment/write off of intangible assets & goodwill 746.86 -
Employee stock compensation expense 3,816.57 -
Provision for inventory obsolescence 825.65 -
Dividend income (13.77) (1.24)
Liabilities written back (9.49) -
Loss on sale of plant, property and equipment 16,51 -
Interest income (2,022.64) (160.79)
Finance costs 124.33 -
Unwinding of interest on deferred consideration 15.50 -
(Profit)/loss on sale of investments (279.71) 324
Operating profit before working capital changes 8,663.35 13,266.20
Movement in working capital:
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables (567.16) (13.06)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories (2,438.87) (520.81)
Decrease/(Increase) in loans and advances (1,013.45) (506.53)
Decrease/(Increase) in other assets (4,306.02) (5,683.09)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payable 4,036.15 111.07
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions 596.90 (169.54)
Increase/(Decrease) in other liabilities 20,840.53 2,546.52
Cash generated from operations 25,811.43 9,030.76
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds and interest) (2.44891) (3,321 66)
Net cash inflow from operating activities (A) 23,362.52 5,709.10
. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including capital work in progress, capital advances and (13,916 89) (1,457.59)
payable for capital goods)
Purchase of intangible assets (6O A1) (AR 4D
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 043 -
Interest received 1,840 38 117.01
Acquisition of Subsidiary (33,240.00) (1,321.22)
Dividends received 13,77 124
Acquisition of Slump sale (1,500.00) -
Loan given to related parties (3,500.00) -
Repayment of oan to related parties 1,000.00 -
Purchase of investments (73,365.00) (2,425.1D)
Proceeds from sale of investments 55,662.37 -
Maturity of Bank Deposits 1,08,012.00 <
Investment in Bank Deposits (1,50,040.06) (3,398 41)
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (1.09.726.61) (9,170.50)
. Cash flows from flinancing aclivities
Proceeds from issuance of preference share capital 79,108,10 -
Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital 015 -
Interest paid (70.83) -
Proceeds from borrowings 10,000.00 -
Repayment of borrowings (244.84) -
Net cash used in financing activities (C) 88,792.58 -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 2,428.49 (3,461.40)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 610.51 4,071.91
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3,039.00 610.51




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: US0900UP2020PTC129223

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks (refer note 22)

on current account 459.83 603.13

in deposit account (with original maturity of 3 months or less) 2,402.70 -
Cash on hand (refer note 22) 136.23 7.38
Cash in transit (refer note 22) 40.24 -

3,039.00 610.51
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements. 1-52
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date.
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Physicswallah Private Limited
Firmp Reg. No.: 101049W/E300004
> s

per Vineet Kedia Piateck Boob ATakh Pandey Rahul Verma
Partner Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No. : 212230 DIN: 07113666 DIN: 08755719 Membership No. A46710
Place: Gurugram Place: Noida Place: Noida Place: Noida
Date: December 24, 2023 Date: December 24, 2023 Date: December 24, 2023 Date: December 24, 2023
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Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: U80900UP2020PTC129223

Notes forming part of standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in INR lacs, except as otherwise stated)

1

2.1

2.2

23

Corporate Information

Physicswallah Private Limited (“the Company™) is a Company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in India and has its
registered address at plot no. B-8, tower A 101-119, Noida One, Noida Sector 62, Gautam Buddha Nagar, Dadri, Uttar Pradesh. The
Company is principally engaged in the business of education by providing online and offline coachings and study material for test
preparation of various competitive exams such as NEET, JEE, etc.

These standalone financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on December 24, 2023,

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India
(Indian GAAP). The Company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read together with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 and
presentation requirements of Division I of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. The financial statements have been prepared on an
accrual basis and under the historical cost convention, except for the following;

= certain derivative instruments measured at fair value

» assets acquired and liabilities assumed including deferred consideration on acquisition of business measured at fair value

* defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value

* share-based payments measured at fair value

These standalone financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis.
The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR/Z). All the values are rounded off to the nearest lacs, except
when otherwise indicated.

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset is treated as
current when it is:
- expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle:
- held primarily for the purpose of trading;
- expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or
- cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
vpui LIHS peiivu

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

- held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are classified as non-current assets and non-current liabilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The
Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at
the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets or liabilities in future periods.




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: U80900UP2020PTC129223

Notes forming part of standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in INR lacs, except as otherwise stated)
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met, directly attributable cost of bringing
the asset to its working condition for the intended use and initial estimate of decommissioning, restoring and similar liabilities. Any
trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and
equipment. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates
them separately based on their specific useful lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the component/ part has a cost which is
significant to the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a written down value over the useful lives of assets estimated by the
management, supported by independent assessment by professionals, as below:

Asset category Useful lives estimated by the Useful lives as per schedule II of the Act
management (years) (years)

Leasehold improvement 3to5 NA

Office equipment 3to5 5

Motor car 8 8

Furniture and fixtures 10 10

Computer & peripherals 3 3

The useful lives have been determined based on managements' judgement which in certain instances are different from those specified
by Schedule II to the Act, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The assets residual values and useful life are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately (o its recoverable
amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: U80900UP2020PTC129223

Notes forming part of standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in INR lacs, except as otherwise staied)

2.5

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in an
amalgamation in the nature of purchase is their fair value as at the date of amalgamation. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intemally generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the year in
which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The Company uses a rebuttable
presumption that the useful life of an intangible asset will not exceed ten years from the date when the asset is available for use. If the
persuasive evidence exists to the affect that useful life of an intangible asset exceeds ten years, the Company amortizes the intangible
asset over the best estimate of its useful life, All intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected patten of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are
treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually. The assessment of indefinite life
is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite
to finite is made on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal, Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognised

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is, as follows:

Intangible asscts I Useful lives Amortisation |  Internally generated or acquired
' method used |
|'*r'""f 10 ysars Straight Line | Kcguirsd I
I'rademarks 10 years Straight Line Acquired
Software 3 years Straight Line Acquired
Content 2-3 years Straight Line Acquired
Intellectual Property Rights 3-20 years Straight Line Acquired
Mobile Application 3 years Straight Line Acquired
Goodwill (on amalgamation) 5 years Straight Line | Acquired

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Notes forming part of standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in INR lacs, except as otherwise stated)

2.6

Impairment of property, plant and equipments and intangible assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use, The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately for each of
the Company’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally
covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after
the fifth year.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable
amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had
no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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2.7

28

Inventories
Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a FIFO basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is primarily derived from educational products and services provided through the online and offline platforms in India.
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Sale of products

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been passed to the
buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. The Company collects Goods and Service Tax (GST) and other taxes on behalf of the
govemnment and, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue.

Income from services

Revenues from coaching services are recognized pro-rata over the period of the contract as and when services are rendered. The
Company collects GST on behalf of the government and, therefore, it is not an economic benefit flowing to the Company. Hence, it is
excluded from revenue. Income from youtube services are recognised on accrual basis. Content library and registration fees are
recognized upfront as substantial performance obligation is met.

Other income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable. Dividend
income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established

Leases

The Company as a lessee

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased
item, are capitalized at the inception of the lease term at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and present value of minimum
lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the financc charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in the statement of
profit and loss. Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs of lease are capitalized

A leased asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the
Company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, the capitalized asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, are classified as
operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Notes forming part of standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in INR lacs, except as otherwise stated)

2.10 Employee Benefits

2.11

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end
of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employee's services up to the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as
current liabilities in the standalone balance sheet.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company
measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has
accumulated at the reporting date. The Company presents the accumulated leave liability as a current liability in the balance sheet,
since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date.

Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
(a) defined benefit plans - gratuity, and

(b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity: Defined benefits obligations

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by an
independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Defined contribution plan

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund scheme are the defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligation, other than
the contribution payable. The Company recognizes contribution payable to these schemes as an expenditure, when an employee renders
the related service

Investments
Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held tor not more than one year from the date on which such investments
are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term mvestments

On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost The cost comprises purchase price and directly attributable acquisition
charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. If an investment is acquired, or partly acquired, by the issue of shares or other securities, the
acquisition cost is the fair value of the securities issued. 1f an investment is acquired in exchange for another asset, the acquisition is
determined by reference to the fair value of the asset given up or by reference to the fair value of the investment acquired, whichever is
more clearly evident.

Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis.
Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a decline other than

temporary in the value of the investments.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the
statement of profit and loss. Investments are measured on FIFO basis.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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2.12

2.13

Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries are usually carried at cost. However, when there is a decline, other than temporary, in the value of a long
term investment, the carrying amount is reduced to recognise the decline. Any reduction in the carrying amount and any reversals of
such reductions should be charged or credited to the profit and loss statement, The cost of an investment should include acquisition
charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

If an investment is acquired, or partly acquired, by the issue of shares or other securities, the acquisition cost should be the fair value of
the securities issued (which in appropriate cases may be indicated by the issue price as determined by statutory authorities). The fair
value may not necessarily be equal to the nominal or par value of the securities issued. If an investment is acquired in exchange for
another asset, the acquisition cost of the investment should be determined by reference to the fair value of the asset given up.
Altematively, the acquisition cost of the investment may be determined with reference to the fair value of the investment acquired if it is
more clearly evident

On disposal of an investment, the difference between the carrying amount and the disposal proceeds, net of expenses, is recognised in
the profit and loss statement.

Employee share based payment

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions). The cost of equity-settled transactions is
determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over the year in which
the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity
settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting year has expired and the
Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or credit in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss for a year represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
year and is recognised in employee benefits expense

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected
In the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions. No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions
have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment transaction or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification
The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted eamings per share.

Group-wide share-based payment arrangements:
For grants by the parent to employees of a subsidiary, the Company recognise the share based payment reserve with a corresponding
debit to investment in subsidiary

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

Income taxes

Income tax

Income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in
accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of profit and loss.

Deferred tax

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income originating during the
current year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized
in equity and not in the statement of profit and loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible timing
differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realized. In situations where the Company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all
deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realized against
future taxable profits.

At each reporting date, the Company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes unrecognized deferred tax asset to the
extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date. The Company writes-down the carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain
or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be
realized. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that
sufficient future taxable income will be available

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally cnforceable right exists to set-off current tax assets against curtent
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority

Segment reporting

In view of Accounting Standard 17 “Segment Reporting” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India the disclosure in
respect of segment information for the year ended March 31, 2023 is not applicable to the Company as the Company does not deal in
varied products/services and hence not exposed to different risks and returns

Earnings per share

Basic eamnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of
calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attribuitable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date and are
not discounted to its present value.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a
reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.
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Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet and cash flow statement comprise cash at banks and in hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Prior period items

The nature and amount of prior period items are separately disclosed in the statement of profit and loss in a manner that their impact on
the current profit or loss can be perceived. Errors in the preparation of the financial statements of one or more prior periods can be
discovered in the current period. Errors can occur as a result of mathematical mistakes, mistakes in applying accounting policies,
misinterpretation of facts, or oversight.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions and balances

(i) Initial recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate
between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction,

(i) Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items, which
are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency, are
translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value was determined.

(iii) Exchange differences

2.22

The Company accounts for exchange differences arising on translation/ settlement of foreign currency monetary items as below:

1. Exchange differences arising on a monetary item that, in substance, forms part of the Company’s net investment in a non-integral
foreign operation is accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve until the disposal of the net investment. On the disposal of
such net investment, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences which have been deferred and which relate to that investment
is recognized as income or as expenses in the same period in which the gain or ioss on disposal is recognized

2 Exchange differences arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items related to acquisition of a property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset

3. Exchange differences arising on other long-term foreign currency monetary items are accumulated in the “Foreign Currency
Monetary Item Translation Difference Account” and amortized over the remaining life of the concerned monetary item

4. All other exchange differences are recognized as income or as expenses in the period in which they arise

For the purpose of 2 and 3 above, the Company treats a foreign monetary item as “long-term foreign currency monetary item”, if it has
a term of 12 months or more at the date of its origination. In accordance with MCA circular dated 09 August 2012, exchange
differences for this purpose, are total differences arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items for the period. In other words,
the Company does not differentiate between exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are
regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost and other exchange difference.

Derivatives activities

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following characteristics:

- its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange
rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the
variable is not specific to a party to the contract (sometimes called the “underlying”);

- it requires no initial net investment or an initial investment that is smaller than would be required for other types of contracts that
would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors; and

- it is settled at a future date.

The Company accounts for derivatives in the following manner:

- All derivative contracts should be recognised on the balance sheet and measured at fair value,

- Subsequently, the Company remeasures its derivatives at each reporting date on fair value with changes in fair value being recognised
in the statement of profit and loss.
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2.23 Acquisition accounting:

Acquisition of business on slump sale basis is accounted for in accordance with purchase method of accounting as prescribed in
Accounting Standard 14 as follows:

(i) The assets and liabilities of the transferor Company are recognized at their fair values at the date of acquisition. The reserves, whether
capital or revenue, of the transferor Company, except statutory reserves, are not recognized.

(ii) Any excess consideration over the value of the net assets of the transferor Company acquired is recognized as goodwill. If the amount
of the consideration is lower than the value of the net assets acquired, the difference is treated as capital reserve.

(iiii) The goodwill arising on amalgamation should be amortised to income on a systematic basis over its useful life. The amortisation

period should not exceed five years unless a somewhat longer period can be justified. Accordingly, goodwill arising on acquisition of
business on slump sale basis is amortized.

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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3

@

(b)

As at Asat

Share capital March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Authorized share capital
7,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 1 each
(March 31, 2022 : 7,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 1 each) 700.00 700.00
70,00,000 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares ("CCPS") of
INR 10 each (March 31, 2022: Nil) 700.00 .

1,400.00 700.00

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

6,00,00,013 equity shares of INR 1 each

(March 31, 2022 : 6,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 1 each) 600.00 600.00
66,66,654 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares ("CCPS") of

INR 10 each (March 31, 2022: Nil)

26,66,654 Series A CCPS (March 31, 2022: Nil) 266.67 -
40,00,000 Series A1 CCPS (March 31, 2022: Nil) 400.00 -
1,266.67 600.00
Notes:
Reconciliation of the share outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Equity shares
As at Asat
March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Particulars Numbers Amount Numbers Amount
Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 6,00,00,000 600.00 1,00,000 1,00
Add : issued during the year 13 - 5,99,00,000 599.00
Equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 6,00,00,013 600.00 6,00,00,000 600.00

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company issued 13 equity shares of INR 1 each, fully paid-up at a premium of INR 1,124 per share As on March 31, 2023, the
Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 1/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote for every share held in the meeting of equity
shareholders The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupces The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
ensuing annual general meeting

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

0.001 % Compulserily Convertible Preference Shares ("CCPS")

As at As at

March 31,2023 - March 31, 2022
Particulars Numbers Amount Numbers Amount
Series A
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year - - -
Add : Issued during the year 26.66.654 266.67 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year (A) 26.66.654 266.67 - -
Series Al
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year - - - -
Add : Issued during the year 40.00.000 400.00 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year (B) 40,00,000 400.00 - -
Total CCPS outstanding at the end of the year (A+B) 66,66,654 666.67 - =

Terms of conversion/redemption of Series A CCPS
During the year ended March 31, 2023, the company issued 26,66,654 compulsorily convertible cumulative preference {CCPS) of INR 10 each fully paid-up at a premium of INR
1,115 per share. These CCPS carry cumulative dividend @ 0.001% p.a. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.The holders of the Series A CCPS shall be entitled to receive notice of and vote on alt
matters that are submitted to the vote of the Shareholders (including the holders of Equity Shares), Each Series A CCPS shall entitle the holder to the number of votes equal to the
number of whole or fractional equity shares into which such Series A CCPS could then be converted

Optional Conversion: On the conversion date, the Seriés A CCPS shall be converted into equity shares at the conversion price determined as provided in agreement. The Series A
Conversion Price initially shall be INR 1,125 (Rupees One Thousand One Hundred Twenty Five only) and each Series A CCPS converting into | (one) equity Share, and shall be
subject to adjustment from time to time as provided in the agreement

Mandatory conversion: All of the Series A CCPS shall mandaterily be converted in such manner and into such number of fully paid Equity Shares as is determined pursuant to the
relevant clauses of the agreement upon the expiry of a period of 20 (twenty) years from the date of issuance of such Series A CCPS or such other period as may be permissible
under applicable Law. The Series A Conversion Price initially shall be INR 1,125 (Rupees One Thousand One Hundred Twenty Five only) and each Series A CCPS converting into
| (one) Equity Share, and shall be subject to adjustment from time to time as provided in the agreement.

In the event of liquidation of the Company before conversion/ redemption of CCPS, the holders of CCPS will have priority over equity shares in the payment of dividend and
repayment of capital
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(¢) Terms of conversion/ redemption of Series Al CCPS

(ii) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company issued 40,00,000 CCPS of INR 10 each fully paid-up at a premium of INR 1,218 per share. CCPS carry cumulative dividend
@ 0.001% p.a. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
ensuing annual general meeting, The holders of the Series A1 CCPS shall be entitled to receive notice of and vote on all matters that are submitted to the vote of the shareholders
(including the holders of Equity Shares). Each Series A1 CCPS shall entitle the holder to the number of votes equal to the number of whole or fractional equity shares into which
such Series A1 CCPS could then be converted.

Optional Conversion: On the Conversion Date, the Series A1 CCPS shall be converted into equity shares at the conversion price determined as provided in agreement. The Series
Al conversion price initially shall be subscription price i.e INR [,228 and each Series A1 CCPS converting into | (one) equity share, and shall be subject to adjustment from time
to time as provided in the agreement.

Mandatory conversion: All of the Series A CCPS shall mandatorily be converted in such manner and into such number of fully paid equity shares as is determined pursuant to the
relevant clauses of the agreement upon the expiry of a period of 20 (twenty) years from the date of issuance of such Series A1 CCPS or such other period as may be permissible
under applicable Law. The Series Al conversion price initially shall be subscription price i.e INR 1,228,00 and each Series Al CCPS converting into 1 (one) equity Share, and
shall be subject to adjustment from time to time as provided in the agreement.

In the event of liquidation of the Company before conversion/ redemption of CCPS, the holders of CCPS will have priority over equity shares in the payment of dividend and
repayment of capital.

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars Nos. Holding % Nos. - Holding %
Equity Shares of INR 1 each fully paid up
Alakh Pandey 3,00,00,000 50.00% 3,00,00,000 50.00%
Prateek Boob 3,00,00,000 50.00% 3,00,00,000 50.00%
6,00,00,000 100.00% 6,00,00,000 100.00%
0.001% CCPS of INR 10 each fully paid up
Series A
GSV Ventures Fund [1I, L.P 9,99,999 37.50% - -
WestBridge AIF [ 16,25,309 60.95% - -
26.25.308 98.45% - e
Series Al
GSV Ventures Fund 111, L P 6.66,667 16 67% -
WestBridge AIF | 32.88.380 8221% -
39,355,047 98.88% - -

As per recoids of the Company, including its register of shareholdersimembers and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above
shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares

(iii) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash aund shares bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding

the reporting date:

As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Equity shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares by capitalization of surplus in the statement of profit and loss - 5,99,00,000
- 5,99,00,000

The Company has allotted 5,99,00,000 fully paid up equity shares of INR 1/~ each pursuant to 599:1 bonus share issue approved by the board resolution passed on March 21,
2022, by capitalising the amount of INR 599.00 lacs of surplus in the statement of profit and loss of the Company

(iv) Shares reserved for issue under options

For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option (ESOP) plan of the company, refer note 38.
For details of shares reserved for issue on conversion of CCPS, refer note 3(b) regarding terms of conversion/ redemption of preference shares
For details of shares reserved for issue under warrant, refer note 5.

(v) Shares held by each promoter |as per section 2(69) of the Companies Act, 2013]

Discl e of shareholding of promoter as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:

As at Asat
Name March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 __ Change during % change
Number of shares % of total shares Number of shares % of total shares the year during the year
held held
Alakh Pandey 3,00,00,000 50.00% 3,00,00,000 50.00% - -
Prateek Boob 3,00,00,000 50.00% 3,00,00,000 50.00% - -

Disclosure of shareholding of promoter as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:

As at As at
Name March 31,2022 March 31,2021 Change during % change
Number of shares % of total shares Number of shares % of total shares the year during the year
held held
Alakh Pandey 3,00,00,000 50.00% 50,000 50.00% 2,99,50,000 -

Prateck Boob 3,00,00,000 50.00% 50,000 50.00% 2,99,50,000 -
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As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

4 Reserves and surplus

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss (refer note 4.1) 11,473.79 9,868.96
Securities premium (refer note 4,2) 78,441.58 -
Employee stock options reserve (refer note 4.3) 3,892.62 -
Closing balance 93,807.99 9,868.96

4.1 Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Balance at the beginning of the year 9,868.96 692.60
Add: Profit for the year 1,604.83 9,775.36
Less: Bonus share issued during the year - (599.00)
Closing balance 11,473.79 9,868.96

Nature and purpose of reserve:
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss are the profits that the Company has eamned/incurred till date, less any dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.

The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders, is determined based on the requirements of Companies Act, 2013. Thus, the
amounts reported above are not distributable in entirety.

Asat As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

4.2 Securities premium
Balance at the beginning of the year -
Add: premium on issue of Series A CCPS (refer note 3) 29,733.19 -

Add: premium on issue of Series A1 CCPS (refer note 3) 48,720.00 -
Add: premium on issue of equity shares (refer note 3) 0.15 -
Less: Share issue expense (11.76) -
Closing balance i 78,441.58 —

Nature and purpose of reserve:
Securities premium is the amount received by the company over the face value of its shares. The reserves can be utilised only for limited purposes in accordance with
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

4.3 Employee stock options reserve
Balance at the beginning of the vear -
Add: Compensation options granted during the year (refer note 38) 3,816.57

Add: Options granted to employees of subsidiary companies 76.05 .
Closing balance 3,892.62 E

Nature and purpose of reserve:
Employee stock option outstanding reserve is used to recognize the grant date fair value of equity-settled share based payment transactions with employees.

As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

5 Share options
Share options 2.963.23 -
2,963.23 -~

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the company has acquired "Entity A", Pursuant to business purchase agreement, proprietor of entity A shall be given certain
options of the company amounting to INR 2,444.44 lacs on the date of the transaction. Every 10 options shall be converted into one equity share upon payment of
exercise price of INR 1 per option (refer note 39)

The Company acquired 51% shareholding in “Entity E" and pursuant to share purchase agreement, the erstwhile promoters of entity E, have been issued certain share
options exercisable at any time after the acquisition date. Every I options shall be converted into one equity share upon payment of exercise price of INR 1 per option
The Company has recognised the fair value of such options on the acquisition date amounting to INR 518.79 lacs in line with AS 14 accounting for amalgamation in the
nature of purchase (refer note 39).
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Asat As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

6 Long-term borrowings

Term loans
Term loan from banks (secured) 6,678.20 -
6,678.20 -

The details of repayment terms, rate of interest and nature of securities provided in respect of term loan from banks are as below:

Term loan from HDFC bank was taken during the financial year 2022-23 and carries interest @ 8.5% p.a. The loan is repayable in 35 monthly installments of INR
315.68 lacs each along with interest from the year ended March 31, 2023. The loan is secured by hypothecation of furniture & fixtures and other fixed assets and second
charge on fixed deposits held with HDFC bank amounting to INR 4,000.00 lacs.

As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

7 Other long- term liabilfies

Franchisee deposit 105.00 -

Lease equalisation reserve (refer note (a) below) 1,593.84 -

Employee benefits payable (refer note (b) below) 25.00

Deferred consideration (refer note (b) below) 169.42 -
1.893.26 -

Note:

(a) During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company has recorded lease equalisation reserve for the purpose of straight- lining lease rental payment aggregating to
INR 1,620.56 lacs out of which INR 1,593.84 lacs represents the non-current portion,

(b) During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company acquired Entity A for an aggreggate consideration of INR 3,900.64 lacs. Pursuant to the business purchase
agreement, out of the mentioned purchase consideration an amount of INR 169.42 lacs (including accrued interest) is payable on December 31, 2024 to the proprietor
of entity A, representing non-current portion of the aggregate liability. In line with AS 14 accounting for amalgamation in the nature of purchase, the Company has
recognised such deferred consideration on its fair value as on the date of acquisition using the effective interest rate method. Further, the Company had employed the
proprietor of entity A and is liable to pay INR 300.00 lacs on December 31, 2025 and accordingly accrued for the proportionate amount of employee benefits payable
(refer note 39).

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

8 Long-term provisions

Provision for employee benefits:
Provision for gratuity (1efer note 37) 253 46 57.16

253.46 57.16

9 Short-term borrowings
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note 6) 3,076.96 -

3,076.96 =

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

10 Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

1,468.81
2,672.67

6.32
108.60

4,141.48

114.92

* Trade payables includes amount payable to related parties of INR 511.28 lacs (March 31, 2022: Nil) (refer note 36)

Trade payables ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2023

Outstanding from date of invoice

Particulars Unbilled Dues  Not due More than 3
Less than I year  1-2 years 2-3 vears years

Total

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises

and small enterprises 211.45 - 1,257.36 -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than

micro enterprises and small enterprises 729.19 - 1,935.98 7.50 - ,

Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small

enterprises -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises

1,468.81

2,672.67

Total 940.64 - 3,193.34 7.50 - -

4,141.48

As at March 31, 2022

Outstanding from date of invoice

Particulars Unbilled Dues  Not due More than 3
Less than 1 vear  1-2 yvears 2-3 years years

Total

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises

and small enterprises . - 6.32
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than

micro enterprises and small enterprises - - 108 60
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small

enterprises

Disputed dues of creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises

108 60

Fatad

There are no non-current trade payables as on March 31, 2023 and as on March 31, 2022

11492

The amount due to Micro, small and medium enterprise in the "Micro, small and medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006" (MSMED) has been determined to the
extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the company. The disclosure relating to micro, small and medium enterprises

('MSME') are as under:

As at

Particulars
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

(i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year:

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 1,455.88

Interest due on the above 12.93
Total 1,468.81
(ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the -
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year:
(iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond -
appointed day during the period) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006:

12.93

(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year:

(v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of
the MSMED Act, 2006:
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As at As at
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
11 Other current liabilities
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 53.50 -
Derivative liability (refer note 16) 530.94 -
Unearned revenue 22,309.83 4,463.05
Advances from customers 38.42 -
Employee benefits payable 937.56 23.74
Statutory dues (including provident fund and tax deducted at source) 2,065.66 535.63
Lease equalisation reserve 26.72 -
Payable in respect of capital goods 1,550.08 32.60
Deferred consideration (refer note (a) below) 750.62 .
Other payables
- related parties 68.86 1,364.56
- others 56.62 -
28.388.81 6,419.58
Note:

(a) During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company acquired Entity A, for an aggreggate consideration of INR 3,900.64 lacs. Pursuant to the business purchase
agreement, out of the mentioned purchase consideration an amount of INR 93.18 lacs (including accrued interest) is payable on December 31, 2023 to the proprietor of
entity A, representing current portion of the aggregate liability. In line with AS 14 accounting for amalgamation in the nature of purchase, the Company has recognised
such deferred consideration on its fair value as on the date of acquisition using the effective interest rate method.

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company acquired 32.68% shares in "Entity F" for an aggregate consideration of INR 7,948.14 lacs. Pursuant to the share
acquistition term agreement, out of the mentioned purchase consideration an amount of INR 372.84 lacs (including accrued interest) is payable on December 31, 2023.
In line with AS 14 accounting for amalgamation in the nature of purchase, the Company has recognised such deferred consideration on its fair value as on the date of
acquisition using the effective interest rate method.

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company acquired 100% shares in "Entity D" for an aggregate consideration of INR 2,071.04 lacs. Pursuant to the share
acquistition term agreement, out of the mentioned purchase consideration an amount of INR 284.60 lacs is payable on January 31, 2023. In line with AS 14 accounting
for amalgamation in the nature of purchase, the Company has recognised such deferred consideration on its fair value as on the date of acquisition using the effective
interest rate method

As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

12 Short-term provisions

Provision for employee benefits;
Provision for compensated absence 400.60

Other provisions
Provision for income tax - 4.60
400.60 4.60

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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13 Property, plant and equipment

Computer & Furnitureand Motor Car Office Leasehold Total Capital work

Peripherals Fixtures Equipments  Impro in progress
Cost or valuation
As at April 01, 2021 75.68 0.87 - 3.62 - 80.17 -
Additions 887.76 88.83 82.20 215.80 183.00 1,457.59
Disposals - - - - = = -
As at March 31, 2022 963.44 89.70 82.20 219.42 183.00 1,537.76 -
Acquisitions through amalgamation (refer note 39) 31.94 5.23 - 3.74 - 40.91 -
Additions 5,775.40 1,410.83 40.31 3,22143 3,047.04 13,495.01 47571
Disposals (34.66) - - (0.57) - (35.23) -
As at March 31, 2023 6,736.12 1,505.76 122.51 3,444.02 3,230.04 15,038.45 475.71
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 01, 2021 11.83 0.18 - 0.04 - 12.05 -
Charge for the year 267.06 6.58 11.73 29.01 11.44 325.82 -
Disposals - - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2022 278.89 6.76 11.73 29.05 11.44 337.87 -
As at April 01, 2022 278.89 6.76 11.73 29.05 11.44 337.87
Charge for the year 1,747.67 141.86 30.07 540.61 564.50 3,024.71 -
Disposals (18.23) - - (0.06) - (18.29) -
As at March 31, 2023 2,008.33 148.62 41.80 569.60 575.94 3,344.29 -
Net book value
As at March 31, 2022 684.55 82.94 70.47 190.37 171.56 1,199.89 -
As at March 31, 2023 4,727.79 1,357.14 80.71 2,874.42 2,654.10 11,694.16 475.71

Refer to note 6 for details of encumbrances on property, plant and equipment
The company has neither revalued nor impaired its property plant and equipment dunng the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

Ageing of capital work in progress

Amount in eapital wark in progress for s period of
Less than 1 1.9 venre 2.3 venre More than 3 Total
year i - years
As at March 31, 2023
Projects in progress
Projects in progress 47571 - - - 47571
Projects temporarily suspended - - = 5 -
Total 475.71 - - - 475.91
As at March 31, 2022

Projects in progress - - - - -
Projects temporarily suspended - s . = -
Total - % = a =

Capital work in progress as at March 31, 2023 includes assets under construction at various offices and head office which are pending installation. There are no projects which have
either exceeds their budget or whose timelines have been deferred.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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CIN: U80900UP2020PTC129223

Notes forming part of dalone fi ial stat
(All amounts in INR lacs, except as otherwise stated)

4

for the year ended March 31, 2023

14 Intangible assets
Content Goodwill IPR Brand Trademark Software  Mobile Application Total
Cost or valuation
As at April 01,2021 - - - - - 5.55 555
Additions 11930 - s < = 6.40 - 125,70
Disposals - ~ - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2022 119.30 - - - - 6.40 5.55 131.25
Purchase on slump sale basis (Refer note 39) 38990 2511.77 - 1,258 05 - - - 415972
Additions 29725 - 434 25 - 0.07 7.95 - 739.52
Disposals - - - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2023 806.45 2,511.77 434.25 1,258.05 0.07 1435 5.55 5,030.49
Accumulated amortization
As at April 01, 2021 - - - - - - 1.06 1.06
Amortization for the year 3.49 - - - - 033 184 566
Disposals - - - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2022 3.49 - - - - 033 2.90 6.72
Amortization for the year 141.03 12387 15.54 3102 001 234 185 31566
Impairment (refer note 48) - 10598 - 173 60 - - = 279.58
Disposals - - - - - - = -
As at March 31, 2023 144,52 229.85 15.54 204.62 i1 267 4.75 601.96
Net book value
As at March 31, 2022 115.81 - - - - 6.07 2.65 124,53
Asat March 31, 2023 661.93  2,281.92 418.71 1,053.43 0.06 11.68 0.80 4,428.53
15 Intangible assets under development
Content Tr k Total
Ceost or valuation
Asat April 01,2021 - - -
Additions 56072 56072
Capitalised during the year - - -
As at March 31, 2022 560.72 - 560.72
Additions - 4753 4753
Writen off during the year (refer note 33) (467 28) (467 28)
Capitalised duriny the year (93 44) - (93 44)
As at March 31, 2023 - 47.53 4753
Ageing of inlangible asset under development
Amaunt in intangible assets under development for & period ol
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years [Lotal
As at March 31, 2023
Projects in progress 4753 4753
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 47.53 - - - 47.53
As at March 31, 2022
Projects in progress 56072 - - - 56072
Projects temporarily suspended -
Total 560.72 - - - 560.72

There are no overdue or cost overrun projects compared to its original plan and no Intangible assets under development which are temporarily suspended, on the above mentioned reporting dates
The company has neither revalued nor impaired its intangible assets except Entity B and internally generated content during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 (refer note 48)

(This space has been intentionally left hlank)




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: U80900UP2020PTC129223

Notes forming part of standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in INR lacs, except us otherwise stuted)

As at March 31, 2023 Ax at March 31, 2022
Fauce Value per share  Units/ shares Amouni Units/ shares Amount

16 Investments

(i) Non current

(a) Investment in unquoted equity instruments - at cost, fully paid u)
Subsidiaries
iNeuron Intelligence Private Limited (Referred to as Entity F in Note 39 & 41) INR 10 25,661 4,801.33 - -
Knowledge Planet Holdings Limited* (Referred to as Entity D in Note 39} AED 10 1,000 2,131.47 - -
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited* INR 10 9,999 1,380.62 9,999 1,365.00
Preponline Futurist Private Limited (Referred to as Entity C in Note 39 & 41) INR 10 1,000 127.53 - -
Utkarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited (Referred to as Entity E in Note 39 & 41) INR 1O 1,06,576 17,244.30 - -
Investment in preference shares (unquoted) - at cost
Subsidiaries
iNeuron Intelligence Private Limited (Referred to as Entity F in Note 39 & 41) INR 10 18,753 3,146.81 - -

28,832.06 1,365.00

* Includes share based payment expense on options granted to employees of Knowledge Planet Holding Limited amounting to INR 60.43 lacs and employees of Penpencil Edu Services Limited

amounting to INR 13,62 lacs.

Name of entity, nature of business and details of purchase Date of acquisition No. of shares Y acquired % with minority Derivative Fair value of
consideration acquired interest instrument* derivative at initial
recognition
Asset/ /(Liability)
{INR lacs)

Entity F, engaged in the business of providing online skilling]  January 01, 2023 25,611 32 68% 67.33%| Put option with the (330.94),

and upskilling courses in a variety of technology domains shareholders of

including data science, artificial intelligence, web development minority interest

etc. through the website and other channels including mobile

applications,

[nvestment in subsidiary measured at : INR 7,948.14 lacs

Entity D, provides coaching services for students in Class 9 tll March 31, 2023 1,000 100,00% - - -

12. For 9th and 10th grade students, they run Foundation

program, with the objective of laying a strong Science & Maths

foundation for higher classes and competitive exams For

Science  swidents n Class 11 and 12, they  provide

Comprehensive  Engineering & Medical Entrance Exam

program to help students excel in Board exams and

Competitive exams such as 1T JEE and NEET.

Investment i subsidiary measured at * INR 2,071 04 Jacs

Ennty C, engaged i the busmess of (i) operating an online e- March 31, 2023 1,000 10% 90 00%]| Call option with the 27247

leartiiis platform oftering Live as well as recorded classes fin Company and put

prepurntion of competitive exams as well as sale of course option with the

materinis and (i) publishing and selling magazines, books, shareholders of

softwares, legal database, newspaper, perniodicals, journals, minority interest

other literary works books/ course matenals/exam papers

Investment in subsidiary measured at : INR 127,53 lacs

Entity E, engaged in the business of providing coaching for| March 31, 2023 2,08,975 31% 49 00%| Forward contract to 72745

competitive governmerit examinations in India conducted by purchase remaining

central yovernment, various state yovernments and other stake

competitive examinations such as NEET/JEE, etc, Entity E is

an omni channel exam preparation platform

Investment in subsidiary measured at : INR 17,244,30 lacs

Notes:

(a) The fair value of derivtive instrument shall be subsequently remeasured through statement of profit and loss at each reporting date,

(b) The investinent value above is adjusted with the fair value of the derivative instrument as on the transaction date

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Physicswallah Private Limited
CIN: U80900UP2020PTC129223
Notes forming part of dalone fi

ts for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in INR lacs, except as otherwise stated)

(b) Non-trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

Investment in equity instruments {(quoted)

Aarti Drugs Limited

Abbott India Ltd

Adani Wilmar Limited

Ajanta Pharma Ltd

Asahi Songwon Colors Limited
Astral Limited

Aurobindo Pharma Limited

BEML Limited

Bhageria Industries Limited

Bharti Airte! Limited

Cartrade Tech Limited

CESC Limited

Cholamandalam Investment And Finance Company Ltd
Cipla Limited

Coastal Corporation Limited
Coforge Ltd *

Dalmia Bharat Sugar And Industries Limited
Den Networks Limited

Dixon Technologies India Ltd
Dedla Dairy Limited

Dr Lal Pathlabs Ltd

Eicher Motors Limited

Force Motors Limited

FSN E-Commerce Ventures Limited
Garware Technical Fibres Ltd
Grasim Industries Limited

HCL Technologies Limited

HDFC Bank Limited

HDFC Life Insurance Company Limited
HIL Limited

Hindalco Industries Limited
Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
ICICI Bank Limited

ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company Ltd
India Nippon Electricals Limited
Indigo Paints Ltd

Info Edge India Ltd

Infosys Limited

Intellect Design Arena Ltd

J Kumiar Infi aprojecis Limiled

ISW Steel Limited

Jubilant Ingrevia Ltd

Kirloskar Ferrous Industries Limited
KNR Constructions Ltd

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited
KSB Limited

Lincoln Pharmaceuticals Limited
L&T Technology Services Ltd
Mahindra & Mahindra Limited
Manali Petrochemicals Limited
Maruti Suzuki India Ltd
Metropolis Healthcare Ltd

Navin Fluorine Intemnational Ltd
NCL Industries Limited

Nestle India Ltd

Newgen Software Technologies Ltd
Page Industries Ltd

Persistent Systems Ltd

Phoenix Mills Ltd

Poly Medicure Ltd

Rajapalayam Mills Limited

Rallis [ndia Limited

Rama Phosphates Limited

Reliance Industries Limited

Rubfila International Limited

S P. Apparels Limited

Salzer Electronics Limited

Sequent Scientific Ltd

Tata Consultancy Services Limited
Tata Consumer Products Limited
Tata Steel Limited

Tech Mahindra Limited

Time Technoplast Limited

Valiant Organics Limited

Vedant Fashions Ltd

Wipro Limited

Total non-current investment

Aggregate amount of quoted investments (Market value: INR 1.28 lacs (March 31, 2022: INR 919.64 lacs))

Aggregate of unquoted inv

No of units - Amount
Asat Asat As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

2,390 - 1242
44 - 7.55
2,625 - 9.00
- 317 - 593
- 699 - 218
- 685 - 1379
- 1,550 - 1124
426 183 003 311
- 4975 - 1163
- 2,102 ~ 1593
- 333 - 201
- 16,090 - 1444
- 2,272 - 16 65
- 2,132 - 2834
- 4,499 - 14 47
- 170 - 763
- 3,056 - 1502
s 27,066 = 1153
- 177 = 77
- 538 - 249
- 191 - 505
- 769 - 1895
- 1312 - 1658
- 384 - 644
* 272 - 787
s 981 - 1590
S 1,357 = 1593
5 1,100 z 1593
% 3,755 z 1980
- 319 - 1237
= 3884 z 2417
- 641 1531
8,057 58 47
195 257
3,035 1125
497 773
139 641
- 843 1593
470 429
7,536 1243
2,100 1582
1,668 761
- 7,270 1540
- 918 254
- 920 1592
- 1320 1499
- 4,020 1446
- 85 - 434
. 2,050 1590
14,572 1657
= 168 1280
- 183 - 375
- 154 - 626
6,377 - 14 96
- 132 - 2271
674 326
12 503
262 1259
- 236 2.54
- 337 3.07
- 1,096 11.26
- 6,114 1528
3315 1080
- 604 - 1587
- 11,101 - 1181
- 2,820 1116
- 8,390 15.15
- 2,251 - 311
- 428 - 1592
- 2,139 - 1592
- 1,558 - 2076
- 1,041 - 1591
- 21,835 - 16,57
- 1,260 - 1124
- 390 - 374
. 2,631 - 15.89
0.03 92736
28,832.09 2,292.36
0.03 927.36
28,832.06 1,365.00




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: U80900UP2020PTC129223

Notes forming part of dalone fi ial for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in INR lacs, except as otherwise stated)

(ii) Current

No of units Amount
As at Asat Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 Murch 31, 2023 Muarch 31, 2022

(a) Quoted Equity

3M INDIA LTD - 31 - 612
Adani Wilmar Limited - 926 - 229
Asahi Songwon Colors Limited - 2,941 - 8.72
Asian Paints Ltd - 616 = 18.94
Axis Bank Ltd - - 2,202 = 16.58
Bajaj Finance Ltd - 142 - 1032
Bajaj Finserv Ltd - 72 - 1238
Bharat Petrolenm Corporation Limited - 4414 - 15.88
Computer Age Management Services Ltd - 259 - 6.09
Crompton Greaves Consumer Electrical Ltd - 1327 - 4.96
Fine Organic Industries Ltd - 156 - 639
HDFC Bank - 2410 - 3537
Himatsingka Seide Limited - 4,026 - 10.68
Infosys Ltd - 2319 - 4443
Jubilant Pharmova Limited - 4355 - 444
Mphasis Ltd = 370 - 12.61
Orient Electric Ltd - 937 - 3.04
Suven Pharmaceuticals Ltd - 603 - 376
Titan Company Ltd - 886 = 22137
= 24542
No of units Amount
As at Asat Asat As at
(b) Quoted Mutual Funds March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

(valued at lower of cost and fair value, unless stated otherwise)

Axis Liquid Fund Growth Direct Plan 2,001,277 11 - 4,999.74 -
DSP Liquidity Fund Growth Direct Plan 1,69,156 96 - 5,403.64 -
Kotak Liquid Fund Growth Direct Plan 55,333 62 - 2,499.87 -
SBI Liquid Fund Growth Direct Plan 1,42,859 67 E 4,999.75 -
Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund Growth Direct Plan 6,93,416 97 - 2,499 91
SBI Arbitrage Opportunities Fund Regular Plan Growth 444035 - 127
ICICI Prudential Overnight Fund Direct Plan Growth 436,293 59 500 00
Motilal Oswal MOSt Shares NASDAQ-100 ETF 20491700 - 24909
True beacon AIF « 334,509 14 - 50000
20,404.18 1,249.09
Total current investment 20,404,185 N T 149451
Aggregate of quoted inv ts (Market value: INR 20,544.95 lacs (March 31, 2022: INR 1,469.41 lacs)) 20,404.18 1,494.51

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: U80900UP2020PTC129223

Notes forming part of standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in INR lacs, except as otherwise stated)

17 Deferred tax asset (net)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and
depreciation/ amortization charged for the financial reporting

165.12 0.35
Disallowance For Provision of Expenses 170.23 1.84
Provision for Lease Equilisation Reserve 412.70 -
Provision For Inventory 207.80 -
Gross deferred tax asset 955.85 2.19
Net deferred tax assets 955.85 2.19

(i)  The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority. In addition, the Company has an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise
the deferred tax assets and settle the deferred tax liabilities simultaneously

(ii)  Tnassessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is probable, that some portion, or all, of the deferred tax assets will be realised.
The ultimate realisation of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences
become deductible. Management considers the projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the level of historical
taxable income and projections for future taxable incomes over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible, management believes that it is probable
that the Company will be able to realise the benefits of those deductible differences in future.

(This space has been intentionally lefi blunk)




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: U80900UP2020PTC129223

Notes forming part of dal financial stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in INR lacs, except as otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
18 Long-term loans and advances
Prepaid expenses 57.81 -
Unsecured, considered good
Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxation) 1,130.89 138.58
Capital advances 1,466 06 241
2,654.76 140.99
19 Other non-current assets
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits 3,878 90 33101
Derivative asset (refer note 16(i)(a)((ii))) 272.47 -
Other bank balances
Deposits with remaining maturity for more than 12 months 5,558.29 549432
Interest accrued but not due 39.38 43.78
9,749.04 5,869.11
20 Inventories
Traded goods
In hand 2,93230 52081
In transit 2738 -
2,959.68 520.81
Less: Provision for inventory obsolescence [B25.65) -
2,134.03 510,81
Details of traded goods
Study material 2,005.10 52081
Merchandise 954.58 -
2,959.68 520.81
21 Trade receivables
Unsecured
From others
Bilted
Considered good 163 87 1306
Considered doubttut
247 16
From related parties (refer note 36)
Considered good 169 19
580.22 13.06
Trade receivables ageing schedule
Asut March 31, 2023
| Current Quistanding for following periods from date of invoice Total
Particulars Unbilled but not due 0-6 months 6 months — 1-2years 2-3 years More than 3
1year Years
Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered good 24716 - 31392 19.14 - - - 580.22
Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered - - - - - - - -
doubtful
Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered good - - - - 2 2 - <
Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered doubtful - - - - - - - -
Taotal 247.16 - 313.92 19,14 - - E 580,22
As at March 31, 2022
Current o] ding for following periods from date of invoice Total
Particulars Unbilled but not due 0-6 months 6 months — 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
1 year years
Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered good - - 13.06 - - - - 13.06
Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered - - - - - - - =
doubtful
Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered good - - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered doubtful - - - - - - - -
Tatal - - 13.06 - - - - 13,06

i. There are no non-current trade receivables as on March 31, 2023 and as at March 31, 2022

ii. No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other offigejs of the company either severally or jointly with any other person other than disclosed in note 36

receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively@@SvriBiggditector is a partner, a director or a member

Nor any trade or other




Physicswallah Private Limited
CIN: U80900UP2020PTC129223

Notes forming part of dal o ial stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in INR lacs, except as otherwise stated)

22 Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks
On current accounts

Deposits with original maturity of less than three months

Cash on hand
Cash in transit

Other bank balances
Deposits with maturity more than three months
but less than |2 months

Interest accrued but not due

23 Short-term loans and advances

Unsecured, considered good*
Loan to related parties (refer note 36)

Other loans and advances

Unsecured, considered good
Loans to employees
Advance to employees
Prepaid expenses
Advances to creditors
Other advances

*The aforesaid loan carries interest rate @ 8% p.a and is repayable on demand

Asat Asat
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
459 83 603.13
2,402.70 -
136.23 738
40,24 -
45353 15 3,389 06
196 01 935
48,588.16 4,008,92
2,501.24
7261 4938
3111 060
773 81 10498
609 89 6953
- 308 53
3,988.66 533.02

Details of Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013) either severally or jointly with any

other person, that are:
(a) repayable on demand or
(b} without specifying any terms or period of repayment

Name

Subuidisry
24 Other current assets

Secured, considered good
Security deposit

Derivative asset (refer note 16(i)(2)((iii)})

Others
Other receivables*

Amount of loan or advance in the | Percentage to the total Loans and

nature of loan outstanding | Advances in the nature of loans
| As at Asat I
| March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022 1
1 2,501 24 = | 62.71%l| -
6237
7,274 50
1,000.87 305.11
8,337.74 305.11

* Other receivables includes INR 952 06 lacs and INR 229 10 lacs receivable from payment gateways as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 respectively




Phvsicswallah Private Limited

CIN: U80900UP2020PTC129223

Notes forming part of standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in INR lacs, except as otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
25 Revenue from operations
Sale of services 70,213.16 20,467.39
Sale of products 6,627.81 2,780.38
Other operating income 335.66 -
77,176.63 ~23,247.77
Sale of products (net of Goods and Service Tax)
Traded goods 6,627.81 2,780.38
6,627.81 2,780.38
Sale of services
Income from coaching services 70,213.16 20.467.39
70,213.16 20,467.39
Other operating income
Advertisement income ] 335.66 -
335.66 -
26 Other Income
Interest Income
Interest income eamed on:
Deposits with bank 1,929.38 160.79
Loan to subsidiary 88.88 -
Loan to others 4.38 -
2,022.64 160.79
Others
License income (net of cost) 232,60 -
Dividend income 13.77 1.24
Net gain on sale of investment in equity shares 5.05 -
Net gain on sale of investment in mutual funds 274 66 -
Gain on settlement of forward contract* 15.61 -
Scrap sales 10.44 -
Liabilities written back 9.49
Cross charge income 1859
Miscellaneous income 24 00 002
604.21 1.26
Total other income 2,626.85 162.05

The company had taken a forward contract for payment of consideration under acquisition agreement, which was subsequently settled by the company due to
Py M ] J '
cancellation of agreement with the countervailing party

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
27 Direct expenses
Professional fees 3,835.52 1,657.41
Server expenses 1,494 06 440.48
Student test expenses 1,048.53 -
Student support services 454.79 -
6,832.90 2,097.89
28 Purchase of traded goods sold
Study material 6,432.95 1,479.31
6,432.95 1,479.31
29 Changes in inventories of traded goods
Opening Stock:
Traded goods 520.81 -
520.81 -
Closing stock
Traded goods 2,959.68 520.81
2,959.68 520.81
Net increase (2,438.87) (520.81)
30 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 33,936.18 3,833.18
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 37) 885.48 86.11
Employee stock option scheme (refer note 38) 3,816.57 -
Gratuity expenses (refer note 37) 196.30 57.16
Compensated absence 400.60 -
Staff welfare expenses 1,416.85 241.99

40,651.98 4,218.44




Physicswallah Private Limited
CIN: U80900UP2020PTC129223

Notes forming part of standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in INR lacs, except as otherwise stated)

31 Finance costs
Interest on loan
Interest on delay deposit of :
Income tax
GST and others

Unwinding of interest on deferred consideration (refer note 7)

Bank fees charges

32 Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 13)

Amortization of intangible assets (refer note 14)

33 Impairment on intangible assets
Impairment on goodwill (refer note 14)
Impairment on intangible assets (refer note 14)
Impairment/write off of intangible assets (refer note 15)

34 Other Expenses
Advertisement and publicity expenses
Rent expenses
Legal and professional charges
Provision for inventory obsolence
Freight and forwarding charges
Office expenses
Commission expenses
Technology expenses
Travelling and accommodation expenses
Power and fuel expenses
Payment gateway charges
Subscription and periodicals
Housekeeping charge
Repairs & mainlenance
Others
Communication cost
Loss on sale of investments
Payment to auditor (refer note (i) below)
Insurance charges
CSR expenditure (refer note (ii) below)
Rates and taxes
Packaging materal cost
Loss on sale of plant, property and equipment
Security expenses
Miscellaneous expenses

(i) Payment to Auditors
- As Auditor

Audit fees

Total

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
124.33
122.09 30.12
25.36 -
15.50 -
9.04 2.34
296.32 3246
3,024.71 325.82
315.66 5.66
3,340.37 — 331.48
105.98 -
173.60 -
467.28 -
746.86 =
6,667.55 1,100.69
5,599.31 343.91
906.82 34.23
825.65 -
804.66 407.16
525.49 55.75
322.37 23.05
39720 102.39
58113 3524
744.80 50 46
492.48 21608
61428 3022
72303 1732
1,075 89 3876
132.18 16.71
- 324
80.00 1.00
157.82 -
140.36 18.51
375.66 73.64
262.61 76.96
16.51 -
333.04 17.38
58.96 14.84
21,837.80 2,677.54
80.00 1.00
80.00 1.00




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: U80900UP2020PTC129223

Notes forming part of standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in INR lacs, except as otherwise stated)

(ii) Details of CSR Expenditure

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 140.36 18,51
b) Amount approved to be spent by board of directors 140.36 18.51
In cash Yet to be paid in cash Total
c) Amount spent during the year ended March 31, 2023
i) Construction/acquisition of assets - - -
ii) On purposes other than (i) above 140.36 - 140.36
d) Amount spent during the year ended March 31, 2022
i) Construction/acquisition of assets - - -
i) On purposes other than (i) above 18.51 - 18.51
Year ended Year ended
) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
¢) Details related to spent/unspent obligations
i) Contribution to Public Trust - 18.51
ii) Contobution to Charitable Trust 140.36 -

iii) Unspent amount in relation to
Ongoing project
Other than ongoing project

Details of ongoing project and other than

going project for vear ended March 31,2023

In case of Section 135(6) (Ongoing project)

Opening balance

With Company

Amount required to
be spent during the
year

In separate CSR |
Unspent A/C |

Amount spent during the year

From Company's
bank A/C

From separate
CSR unspent A/C

Closing balance

|1 ease of Section 13545 (Other than ano

e nroiect)

Opening balance

Amount deposited in Specified
Fund of Sch. VII within 6 months

Amount required to be
spent during the year

Amount spent during the
year

Details of ongoing project and other than ongoing project for year ended March 31, 2022

In case of Section 135(6) (Ongoing project)

Opening balance

Amount required to
be spent during the
year

Amount spent during the year

Closing balance

With Company

In separate CSR
Unspent A/C

From Company's
bank A/C

From separate
CSR unspent A/C

With Company/In
separate CSR

In case of Section 135(5) (Other than ong

oing project)

Opening balance

Amount deposited in Specified
Fund of Sch. VII within 6 months

Amount required to be
spent during the year

Amount spent during the
year

Closing
Balance
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(All amounts in INR lacs, except as otherwise stated)
35 Earnings per share (EPS)

Profit for the year

Net profit for calculation of basic EPS (a)

Profit for the year as above

Net profit for calculation of diluted EPS (b)

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS (c)

Effect of dilution:
Convertible preference shares
Share options

Employee stock option plan

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS (d)

Basic earnings per share (INR) (a/c)
Diluted earnings per share (INR) (b/d)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1,604.83 9,775.36
1,604.83 9,775.36
1,604.83 9,775.36
1,604.83 9,775.36
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
6,00,00,010 6,00,00,000
23,85,379 B
22,583 -
11,32,776 -
6,35,40,748 6,00,00,000
2.67 16.29
2.53 16.29
oY)
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Notes forming part of standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in INR lacs, except as otherwise stated)

36 Related party disclosures
Names of related parties and related party relationship, irrespective of whether transaction have occurred or not is given below:

(a) Name of related parties and nature of relationship

Entities where control exists Nature of relationship
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited (w.e.f. March 30, 2022) Subsidiary

Preponline Futurist Private Limited (w.e f. March 31, 2023) Subsidiary

Knowledge Planet Holdings Limited (w.e.f. March 31, 2023) Subsidiary

iNeuron Intelligence Private Limited (w.e.f. December 31, 2022) Subsidiary

Utkarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited (w.e.f March 31, 2023) Subsidiary

PW Foundation (w.e.f. February 25, 2022) Others

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Alakh Pandey Director
Rajat Pandey Director
Gaurav Choudhary Director
Prateek Boob Director

Relatives of KMP with whom transactions have taken place during the year
Ekta Kabra Relative of KMP
Sonal Mundhra (Finance controller) Relative of KMP

(b) Transactions with related parties
Transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year end are unsecured and
interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables for the year ended March 31,
2023 and year ended March 31, 2022. The Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2022: Nil). This
assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates. There are no
commitments with refated parties

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties:

Nature of transactions Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Remuneration paid

Alakh Pandey 45762 960,00
Rajat Pandey 3112 31.00
Prateek Boob 180,12 105.00
Gaurav Choudhary 23.80 10.68
Sonal Mundhra 6131 16.86

Reimbursement of expenses
Alakh Pandey 9.96 3783

Legal and professional expenses
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 24 48 =

Miscellaneous income
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 18,59 -

Reimbursement of expenses received
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 50,11 =

Office expenses

Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 3.06 -
CSR expenditure
PW Foundation 140,36 -

Purchase of shares of Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited
Prateek Boob - 682,51
Ekta Kabra - 682.51

Investment in subsidiaries through ESOP
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited
Knowledge Planet Holding

15.62 -
60,43 -
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Notes forming part of standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in INR lacs, except as otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Transfer of advertisement income
Alakh Pandey 162.77 =
Sale of goods/services
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 99.00 .
Purchase of services
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 1,447.48 420.75
Ineuron Intelligence Private Limited 513.32 -
Sonal Mundhra = 417
Loans given
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 3,500.00 -
Repayment of loans given
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 1,000.00
Interest income received on loan
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 88.88 -
Rental Income
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 0.85 -
The following table provides the closing balances of related parties for the relevant financial year:

As at Asat

March 31, 2023

March 31,2022

Loan given

Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 2,500 00

Interest accrued

Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 124

Trade payables

Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 206.89

Ineuron Intelligence Private Limited 304.39

Other payables

Alakh Pandey - 0.72
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 68.88

Trade receivable

Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 101.56 -
Preponline Futurist Private Limited 57.97 -
Utkarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited 9.66 -
Other receivable

Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 20.08 «
Investment in subsidiary through ESOP

Knowledge Planet Holding 60.43

Equity share capital

Ekta Kabra - 681.82
Prateek Boob - 681.82
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Notes forming part of standalone financial stat ts for the year ended March 31,2023
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37 Employee benefits plan
(i) Defined contribution plans - Provident Fund, ESI and labour welfare fund

The Company makes Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance Seheme and Welfare Fund contributions whicli are defined contribution plans, for qualifying employees.
Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits, The Company recogmised INR 885.48 laes
(March 31, 2022: INR 86.11 lacs) for Provident Fund & other fund contributions in the statement of profit and loss. The contributions payable to these plans by the

Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

(ii) Defined benefit plans (unfunded):

The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity (Amendment) Act, 2018. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service
gets & gratuity on departure at 15 days basic salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The plan is unfunded benefit plan for qualifying employees.

Year ended

Year ended

_ March 31,2023 March 31,2022

(a) Statement of profit and loss
Net employee benefit expense recognized in the employee cost

Current service cost 57.50 -
Interest cost on benefit obligation 7.97 -
Expected return on plan assets = =
Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the year 130.83 -
Past service cost - 57.16
Net benefit expense 196.30 57.16
(b) Balance sheet
Benefit asset/ liability
Present value of defined benefit obligation 253.46 57.16
Plan asset/ (Liability) (253.46) (57.16)
(c) Changes in present value of obligations
Balance as at the beginning of the year 57.16 -
Interest cost 797 -
Current service cost 57.50 -
Past service cost - 57.16
Benefits paid -
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on obligation - 130.83
Balance as at the end of the year 253£ 57.16
(d) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the company’s plans are shown below:
Financia! assumptions
Discount rate (p a) 7.35% ©.95%
Salary escalation (p.a) 10.00% 15.00%
Expected Rate of Return on Assets (p.a.) NA NA
Demographic Assumptions
Attrition rate (p.a)
upto 30 years 28.00% 3.50%
31-44 years 28 00% 1.00%
45 and above years 28.00% 0.50%
Retirement age (in years) 58 60
Mortality Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
(2012-14) (2012-14)

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and

demand in the employment market.

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be

settled, There has been significant change in expected rate of return on assets due to change in the market scenario

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2021  March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2019

(e) Amounts for the current and previous four periods are as follows:

Defined benefit obligation 25346 57.16 - -
Plan assets - 3 o .
Surplus/(deficit) (253.46) (57.16) - -

Experience adjustments on plan - - -
Experience adjustments on plan assets - - ] =
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38 Employee Stock Option Plan

Employee Share Option Plan (ESOP)
The company provides share-based payment schemes to its employees. During the year ended March 31, 2023, an employee stock option plan (ESOP) was in
existence. The relevant details of the scheme and the grant are as below:

Employee Share Option Plan 2022
The company provides share-based payment schemes to its employees The relevant details of the scheme and the grant are as below.

On August 30, 2022, the board of directors approved the equity settled "Employees Stock Option Plan 2022" for issue of stock options to various employees of the
Company. According to the scheme, the employees will be entitled to options, subject to their continued employment with the Company. The other relevant terms of
the grant are as below:

Class of Share Equity Shares
Vesting Pattemn Four-year vesting term and vest at the rate of 25% in the first year and 6.25% each quarter from the first quarter of
the second year and become fully exercisable, subject to employee being in the employment of the Company

Three-year vesting term and vest at the rate of 33% in the first year and 8.3% each quarter from the first quarter of
the second year and become fully exercisable, subject to employee being in the employment of the Company.

Three and Half year vesting term and vest at the rate of 25% in the first year and 7.5% each quarter from the first
quarter of the second year and become fully exercisable, subject to employee being in the employment of the
Company.

Two year vesting term and vest at the rate of 50% in the first year and 12.5% each quarter from the first quarter of
the second year and become fully exercisable, subject to employee being in the employment of the Company.

Two and Half year vesting term and vest at the rate of 40% in the first year and 10% each quarter from the first
quarter of the second year and become fully exercisable, subject to employee being in the employment of the
Company

One year vesting term and vest at the rate of 100% in the first ycar and become fully cxercisable, subject to
employee being in the employment of the Company

Conversion ratio 101 (ic, 10 Options will convert into 1 Equity Sharc)

Exercise Price INR [

Movements during the period
The [ollowing are the number and weighled average exercise prices { WALEP) ol. and movements in, share dplions during the yeal

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars No. of options WAEP (INR) No. of options WAEP (INR)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year - - -

Granted during the vear * 3.35.24 912 1.00 | -

Forfeited/ Expired during the vear 29.630 100

Exercised during the vear - = = =
Outstanding at the end of the vear 3.34.95.282 1.00 -

Exercisable at the end of the vear - z a z

* The granted shares include "down round" clause
The weighted average fair value of the options granted during the year is INR 624.30 (March 31, 2022: Nil)

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the stock options outstanding as at March 31, 2023 is 1.52 years (March 31, 2022: Nil). The exercise prices for
options outstanding at the end of the year was INR 1 (March 31, 2022: Nil)

The Black Scholes valuation model has been used for computing the weighted average fair value considering the following inputs:

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Dividend vield (%) = =
Expected volatility (%) 57% - 58% -
Risk-free interest rate (%) 7.20%
Expected life of the options granted (in years) 2,05
The expense recognised for employee services received during the period is shown in the following table:

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Expense arising from employee share-based pavment plan 3.816.57 -
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39 Business acquisitions
(a) The Company has entered into certain business purchase agreement, details of which are as under:
(i) ONLYIAS Nothing Else (Entity A)

The Company had entered into Business purchase agreement with sole proprietor of Entity A on December 31, 2022 to acquire its coaching class
business under its brand, which constitutes a business for a fair value of cash consideration of INR 1,200.00 lacs, fair value of deferred consideration of
INR 256.20 lacs and fair value of share options amounting to INR 2,444.44 lacs. The Company has accounted for the amalgamation under the purchase
method and recognized assets and liabilities acquired at fair value. The excess of purchase consideration paid by the company over the aggregate value
of the net assets acquired has been treated as goodwill, to be amortized over a period of 5 years from the date of amalgamation,

The following table presents the purchase consideration, fair value of asset acquired and goodwill recognised on the date of acquisition (i.e. January 01.

2023)

Details of Fair value recognised on acquisition as on January 01, 2023:

Particulars Life Amount

Brand 10 years 1,080.06
Content 3 years 389.90
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 years 30.38
Total fair value of net assets acqguired (A) 1,500.34
Fair value of purchase consideration (B) 3,900.63
Goodwill arising on acquisition (C =B - A) 2,400.29
Purchase consideration Amount
Cash consideration 1,200.00
Deferred consideration 256 20
Lquity options 2,444 44
Total purchase consideration 3,900.64

(ii)) Top Tak Education (Entity B)

The Company had entered into Business purchase agreement proprietor of Entity B on January 01, 2023 1o acquire its online coaching business for a
consideration of INR 300.00 lacs. The company has accounted for the amalgamation under the purchase method and recognized assets and liabilities
acquired al fair value. The excess of purchase consideration paid by the company over the aggregate value of the net assets acquired has been treated as
goodwill, 1o be amortized over a period of’ S years [rom the date of amalgamation.

The following table presents the purchase consideration, fair value of asset acquired and goodwill recognised on the date of acquisition (i.e. January 01,

2023).

Details of Fair value recognised on acquisition as on January 01, 2023

Purchase consideration Life Amount

Brand 10 years 177.99
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 years 10.53
Total fair value of net assets acquired (A) 188.52
Fair value of purchase consideration (B) 300.00
Goodwill arising on acquisition (C =B - A) 111.48
Purchasc consideration Amount
Cash consideration 300.00
Total purchase consideration 300.00

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Company has entered into a separation agreement to terminate the said acquisition and resultantly impaired the

goodwill and intangible asset recognised, refer note 48 for details.
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(b)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The Company has entered into certain share purchase agreement, details of which are as under:

Entity C

The Company had entered into Share purchase agreement with Entity C, on March 17, 2023 to acquire 10% stake in its coaching business which
constitutes live and recorded classes for competitive exams alongwith publishing and selling of literary works and course materials for a fair value of
cash consideration of INR 400.00 lacs. Further, as part of the Share purchase agreement, the remaining shareholders possess swap option that allows
exchange of their shares at a predetermined ratio of 11.92:1 at anytime after the closing date. Detailed computation of purchase consideration is as
follows:

Purchase consideration Amount
Fair value of cash consideration 400.00
Less: Adjustment on account of derivative (27247)
Total purchase consideration (refer note 16) 127.53
Entity D

The Company had entered into Share purchase agreement with Entity D, on December 28, 2022 to acquire 100% stake in its business of providing
test preparation services to students which constitutes a business for a fair value of cash consideration of INR 1,786.44 lacs and fair value of deferred
consideration amounting to INR 284.60 lacs. The company has accounted for the share acquisition and recognized assets and liabilities acquired at
fair value. Detailed computation of purchase consideration is as follows:

Purchase consideration Amount
Fair value of cash consideration 1,786.44
Fair value of deferred consideration 284.60
Total purchase consideration (refer note 16) 2,071.04
Entity E

The Company had entered into Share purchase agreement with Entity E. on February 18, 2023 to acquire 51% stake in its coaching classes business
which constitutes a business of providing coaching for competitive exams having strong digitial presence for a fair value of cash consideration of INR
24,000.00 lacs and fair value of share options amounting to INR 518 80 lacs. Further, As part of the Share purchase agreemenl. the Company has

Ciitcicd it a forward coniract 1 acquire the wemaning sharcs over a penod of 4 years. consideration of which would be based on the performance
(profit after tax) of Entity E. Detailed computation of purchase consideration is as follows:

Purchase consideration Amount
Fair value of cash consideration 24,000.00
Fair value of share options 518,80
Less: Adjustment on account of derivative (7,274.50)
Total purchase consideration (refer note 16) 17,244.30

Entity F

The Company had entered into Share purchase agreement with Entity F, on December 23, 2022 to acquire 32.68% stake in its coaching classes
business to students which constitutes a business of providing online upskilling classes through their webiste and mobile channels for a fair value of
cash consideration of INR 7,053.56 lacs and fair value of deferred consideration amounting to INR 363.64 lacs. Further, as part of the Share purchase
agreement, the remaining shareholders possess swap option that allows exchange of their shares at a predetermined ratio of 4.98:1 at anytime after the
closing date. Detailed computation of purchase consideration is as follows:

Purchase consideration Amount
Fair value of cash consideration 7.053.56
Fair value of deferred consideration 363.64
Add: Adjustment on account of derivative 530.94
Total purchase consideration (refer note 16) 7,948.14

< This space has been intentionally left blank>
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40 Leases

As a lessee

The Company has significant operating lease arrangements for premises. These lease arrangements range for a period between 11 months and 10 years, which
include both cancellable and non-cancellable leases. Most of the leases are renewable for further period on mutually agreeable terms and also include escalation
clauses. The Company has entered into some sub-leases and all such sub-leases are cancellable and are for a period of 11 months, with an option of renewal on

mutually agreeable terms.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
With respect to all operating leases:
Lease payments recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year 5,599.31 343,91
Sub-lease payments received/receivable recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year
With respect to non-cancellable operating leases, the future minimum lease payments are as follows:
Not later than one year 9,322.32 862.07
Later than one year and not later than five years 34,138.09 3,313.24
Later than five years 17,103.99 512.89
41 Capital and other commitments
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
.. Fair value of redemption liability with respect to put option available with the minority shareholders of 17,240.00 -
O Entity F
) Fair value of redemption liability with respect to call option with the Company to acquire minority 898,99
interest shareholder of Entity C
(i) Fair value of forward contract entered by the company to purchase 49% stake acquisiton of Entity E 11,106 20
iif
(iv) Undrawn bank overdraft facility with HDFC bank 1,500 00 -

42 Disclosure required under Sec 1836(4) of the Companies Act 2013

Included in loans and advance are certain intercorporate deposits the particulars of which are disclosed below as required by Sec 186(4) of Companies Act 2013:

As at March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022
Name of the Loan given/ Outstandin Maximum amount Maximum amount
loanee g' g outstanding during the  Loan given/ (repaid) Outstanding balance outstanding during the
(repaid) balance
year year
Penpencil Edu
Services Private 3,500.00 2,501.24 3,500.00 - - -
Limited
43 Contingent liabilities
There is no contigent liability as on the reporting date
44 Expenditure in foreign currency (accrual basis)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Professional fees 332.26 -
332.26 =
45 Earnings in foreign currency (accrual basis)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Advertisement income 335,66 -

335.66
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46 Ratios
Ratio Numerator Denominator March 31,2023 |March 31, 2022| % Change | Remarks for changes in
the ratio by more than
25% as compared to
Previous vear
Current ratio  |Current Assets Current Liabilities 2.33 1.05 121.96%| [ncrease is due to purchase
of investments due to
certain idle funds pursuant
to infusion of funds via
CCPS,
Debt- Equity  |Total Debt Shareholder's Equity 0.10 - 100.00%|The movement in current
Ratio year is on account of term
loan.
Debt Service  |Earnings for debt service = Net Debt service = Interest + Lease 2795 - +100.00%| The movement in current
Coverage ratio |profit after taxes + Non-cash Payments + Principal Repayments year is on account of term
operating expenses (Depreciation & loan
amortisation) + Finance costs
Return on Net Profits after taxes - Preference  |Average Shareholders Equity 2.96% 175.15%|  (98.31%)|Movement is due to
Equity ratio Dividend issuance of preference share
capital during the year and
reduction in profits
compared to last year,
Inventory Cost of goods sold or Sales Average Inventory 301 3.68 (18.25%)
Turnover ratio
Trade Net sales = Gross sales - sales return |Average Trade Receivable 260.17 3,560.15 (92.69%)|Movement is due to increase
Receivable in revenue during the year
Turnover Ratio as compared to last year
Trade Payable |Net credit purchases = Gross credit |Average Trade Payables 623 60 24 -89 65%|Movement is due to increase
Turnever Ratio |purchases - purchase return in direct expense
I ! corresponding to revenue
Net Capital Net sales = Total sales - sales return |'Working capital = Current assets —I 16t 69 12 (97 6%%4)|Movement is due to certain
| Turnover Ratio Curtent liabilities | expenses in current vear like
|ESOP. Inventory provision
|and other expenses due to
business expansion
Net Profit ratio |Net Profit Net sales = Total sales - sales 2.08% 42.05%| (95.05%)|The movement in current
return year is on account of
increase in finance cost,
ESOP expenses, salary
expenses, high rental and
offline center related
expenses because of
increase in operation and
expansion
Return on Earnings before interest and taxes  |Capital Employed = Tangible Net 2.34% 134.19%| (98.25%)|The movement in current
Capital Worth + Total Debt + Deferred year is on account of
Employed Tax Liability increase in networth during
the current year,
Return on Income generated from investments |Weighted average value of 3.11% 143% 117.78%]|The movement in current
Investment investments year is on account of sale of
investments in current year.
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47 Additional regulatory information required by Schedule III
i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any
Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

ii) The Company has balance with the below-mentioned companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956.

Name of struck off | Nature of transactions Balance outstanding (INR in lacs) Relationship with the Struck
Company with struck-off Company off company, if any, to be
As at As at disclosed
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Affinity Excellence |Student support service 0.19 0.00
Private Limited )

iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

iv) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

v) The Company has neither traded nor invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year ended March 31, 2023.
Further, the Company has also not received any deposits or advances from any person for the purpose of trading or investing in Crypto
Currency or Virtual Currency.

vi) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™); or
(it) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behaif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

vii) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Party”) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:

{1} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner witalsoever Dy or on behail ol ihe Funding Party
(Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
viii) The Company does not have any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income-tax

Act, 1961). Further, there was no previously unrecorded income and no additional assets were required to be recorded in the books of
account during the year.

ix) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction
on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,and there are no companies beyond the specified layers.

x) The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

xi) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year.

48 The Company had entered into business purchase agreement with sole proprietor of Entity B on January 01, 2023 to acquire its coaching
class. However, due to ongoing discussion as of March 31 2023, the management entered into a separation agreement on September 14, 2023
for terminating the business purchase agreements. In pursuant to separation agreement, the company has impaired the Goodwill amounting
to INR 105.98 lacs and Brand amounting to INR 173.60 lacs.
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49 Segment Reporting
The Company is engaged in the business of education. Considering the nature of Company’s business and operations, there are no separate
reportable segments (business and/or geographical) in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard 17 ‘Segment Reporting’.

50 Derivative instruments, foreign currency exposure and risk management
The company is exposed to market risk which includes foreign currency risk and interest rate risk. The Company’s senior management oversees
the management of these risks. The company’s senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and
the appropriate financial risk governance framework. The financial risk committee provides assurance to the company’s senior management that
the company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and
managed in accordance with the company’s policies and risk objectives.

The Company's exposure in foreign currency at the end of reporting period :
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Amount in foreign

Amount in foreign

Amount in INR lacs Amount in INR lacs

currency currency
Trade Payable USD 39.403 32.40 - -
Trade receivable USD 51,412 42.27 - -
Advances to Foreign USD 1,062 0.87 - -

vendors

51 Subsequent to year ended March 31, 2023, the Company had acquired 60.35% stake in )(ylcm for a consideration of INR 6,850.50 lacs on June
17, 2023. The same is engaged in the business of providing coaching for competitive examinations such as NEET/JEE, etc.

52 Previous year figures have been audited by a firm of chartered accountants other than S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP and have been regrouped
and re- arranged wherever necessary.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the En; [ﬂ%rx‘ of
Chartered Accountants Physicswallah Private Li # -7)\
' [l

Firm Reg. No.: 101049W/E300004 [ /\\\ =
~ | 2 ) \ Vol L
ﬁ" e \l\ J' {I? (- “-(‘-‘2& -~ ) \(\]/ 3 f: ]
et — i ety ™ \W@T/ =
per Vineet Kedia ’ AS:‘ : )(rnte’e/k Boob Al aki.f:ﬁ\dey Rahul Verma

Partner Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No. : 212230 DIN: 07113666 DIN: 08755719 Membership No. A46710
Place: Gurugram Place: Noida Place: Noida Place: Noida

Date: December 24, 2023 Date: December 24. 2023 Date: December 24, 2023 Date: December 24. 2023
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S.R. BATL1BO1 & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered A
ccountants
Tel: +91 124 681 A000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Physicswallah Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statemenis

Opinion

statements of Physicswallah Private Limited

hsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
consolidated Balance sheet as at March

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™), iis su
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™) comprising of the
11 2023. the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the
year then ended, and notes 10 the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accountipg policies and other explanatory information (hereinafier referred to as “the consolidated financial

statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based

on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial
information of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner 50 required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated
state of affairs of the Group. as at March 31, 2025, their consolidated profit and their consolidated cash

flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

we conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the - Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Gratements’ section of our report. Weare independent of the Group. in accordance with the ' Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board of Directors report, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conelusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statemenis or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. The Director’s report is not made available 10 us as at the date of this auditor’s report.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilitics of Management for the Consolidated Fina ncial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the
Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of their respective
company(ies) and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group (o continue as a going concern,
disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of their respective companies.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
‘ectatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report

whole are free from material mi
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when il exists.

audit conducted in accordance with
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatem
due to fraud or error, design and
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provi
4 material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
ivolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepre

control.
b) Obtain an understanding of interna
that are appropriate in
for expressing our opinion on w
with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting poli

c)
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

ent of the consolidated financial statements, whether

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit

de a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
for one resulting from error, as fraud may
sentations, or the override of internal

| control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
hether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls

cies used and the reasonableness of accounting

o
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d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the awdit evidence obtained. whether a maternial uncerlainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a 2oing COncer.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group o cease o
COntinue as a going concern.

¢} Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated [inancial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

f) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors and whose financial
nformation we have audited, to express an opinion on the conselidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of
such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been
audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
ingluded in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors rezarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable. related
saleguards,

Other Matter

a) We did not audit the financial statements and other fnancial information. in respect of four
subsidiaries, whose financial statements include total assets of INR 13,739 Lacs as at March 31, 2023,
and total revenues of INR 1,193 Lacs and net cash inflows of INR (52) Lacs for the year ended on that
date, These financial statement and other financial information have been audited by other auditors,
whose financial statements, other financial information and auditor’s reports have been furnished 1o
us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-
sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely
on the repori(s) of such other auditors. :

One of these subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial statements and other financial

information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their

respective countries and which have been audited by other auditors under generally accepted auditing

standards applicable in their respective countries. The Holding Company’s management has c:ﬂm-uﬂuz
the financial statements ‘-:i:r!':l.ll.'h subsidiary located outside India from accounting principles generally
accepted in their respective countries 1o accounting principles generally accepted in India, We have
audited these conversion adjustments made by the Holding Company’s management, Our opinion in
50 far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries located outside India is based on the
report of other auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the Holding
Company and audited by us,
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b} The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022, included in
these consolidated financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed

an unmodified opinion on those stalements on September 21, 2022

Our opinion above on the consolidated hinancial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
espect of the above matters with respect 1o our reliance on the

Requirements below, is not modificd in r
financial statements and other financial information

waork done and the reports of the other auditors and the
certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, hased on our audit and on
the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial
information of the subsidiary companies, incorporated in India, as noted in the ‘Other Matter’
paragraph we give in the “Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) of

the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries, as
noted in the *other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) Welthe other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the

purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept so far as it appears from
our examination of those books except as disclosed in the note 51. certain subsidiaries incorporated
in India does not have server physically located in India for the daily backup of the books of account
and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode or the backup of the books of account
and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained,

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

(d) In our opinion. the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Companies
{Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 specified under section 133 of the Act;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary
companies, none of the directors of the Group's companies, incorporated in India is disqualified as
on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; f

(fi The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are
as stated in paragraph (b) above.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India,
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 27 to

this report;

Fo——
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(h) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Holding
Company and, its subsidiaries incorporated in India for the yvear ended March 31, 20233

(i) With respect 1o the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the
report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial information
of the subsidiaries as noted in the *Other matter® paragraph:

i. The Group, does not have any pending litigations which would impact its consolidated
financial position;

ii. The Group, did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the yvear ended March 31, 2023;

tii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and, its subsidiaries incorporated in India during
the year ended March 31, 2023.

iv. a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act
have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, 1o the best
of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the note 47(vi) to the consolidated
financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding
Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other person{s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective
Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries, (*Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, which are

companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act

have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best

of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the note 47(vii) to the consolidated
financial statements, no funds have been received by the respective Holding Company or any
of such subsidiaries, from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding
Company or any of such subsidiaries shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries, which
are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the other auditors
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-
statement,
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v.  Nodividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company and, its subsidiaries
companies, incorporated in India.

vi.  Asproviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable only w.c-f_'- April 1,
2023 for the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, companies incorporated in India, hence
reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Vineet Kedia

Partner

Membership Number; 212230
UDIN: 23212230BGS5J52095

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: December 24, 2023
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Anncxare “1° referred to in paragraph 1 of report under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory

requirements”™ of our report of even date

Re: PhysicsWallah Private Limited (*the Group')

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account and records
examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(1) Qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companics {Aunditors Report) Order

(CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements are.

s, Name I CIN Holding " Clanse number of
No. company/ the CARD report
subsidiary which ks qualiffed
ar is adverse
1 Physicswallah UB0900UP2020PTC 129223 Holding Clause wa)(A)
Private Limited Clause i(b)
Clause mi{a)
Clanse iii(b)
Clause mifc)
Clause visa)
I Clause xiv{b)
2 Preponline LTEN202DL2020PTCIRGR52 Subsidiary Clause vii(a)
Futurist  Private |
Limited
3 Penpencil Edu UE003DL2A019PTCIS3446 Subsidiary Clause i(a)(A)
Services  Private Clausze i(b)
Limited Claunse iiifc)
. Clause vii(a)
! Clause ix(d)
~elnaa] Clause xvii
4 Utkarsh Classes & | U72900RI2018PTCO63 026 Subsidiary Clause i(a)
Edutech  Private Clause i(b)
Limited Clause ii{a)
Clause iiifc)
_ Clause iiifd)
5 I[neuron US0902ZKA2019PTC1 26951 Subsidiary Clase viia)
Intelligence Clanse x(b)
Private Limited

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number; 101049W/EIMN004

per Vineet Kedia

Partner

Membership Number: 212230
UDIN: 23212230BGSSJ82095
Place: Gurugram

Date; 24 December, 2023
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PHYSICSWALLAH PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act”)

We were engaged to audit the intermal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of Physicswallah Private Limited (hereinafier referred to as “the Holding Company™) and its
subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™), which are
companies incorporated in India, as of March 31, 2023, in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated
tinancial statements of the Holding Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, which are companies

incorporated in India, are responsible for laying down and maintaining internal financial controls based

on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering

the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT) .These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility 15 to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit conducted in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the *Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, 1o the extent applicable to

an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAL

Because of the matter described in Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph below, we were not able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on internal financial controls

with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors m.‘llm company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a

material effect on the financial statements.
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Disclaimer of Opinion

1 to us and based on the report issued by other auditors

According to the information and explanation give i :
the consolidated financial statements,

on the internal financial controls with reference to

(i)  the Holding Company and one of the subsidiary Company has not r.-rttahlishnd its internal f'l]:j.ﬂ.'l.'lc:lﬂ-l
control with reference to consolidated financial statements on cnitena based on or considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the I_CM. Hn;:?ausc
of this reason, we are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
our opinion whether the Holding Company and one of its subsidiary, which i5 a company
incorporated in India, had adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements as at March 31, 2023 and whether such internal financial controls were
operating effectively. :

(ii) in relation to another subsidiary of the Company, the internal financial control system 1_.=.r|.r_h respect
to maintenance of requisite inventory records relating to consumption of inventories was not
operating effectively and the subsidiary did not maintain proper records showing full p:n:tmu_l:afs
including quantitative details and situation of the property plant and equipment and intangible
assels.

Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements,

Explanatory paragraph

We also have audited, in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAI , as specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act, the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, which
comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the consolidated Statement of Profit
and Lass, including consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and our report dated December 24, 2023 expressed unmodified opmion. We
have considered the disclaimer reported above in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests
applied in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, and the disclaimer
does not affect our opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per \"m

Partner
Membership Number: 212230
UDIN: 23212230BGSSJS2095

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: December 24, 2023
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Comsolidsted Statement of Caal Flows for the vear ended March 31, 2023
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Wear ended ¥ ewr endasd
March 31, 1023 March 31, 2002
A. Cagh fonw frem speouting actiiricn
Prafitfless) before tax 1 0 TR 1315859
Anffastremiy i peconaile prof before far fo mef caeh o
Depreciaticn of property. plant sad equipmend 3,104.44 33562
Tepaknrecnt'write ofT of mEangible assets & goodad| T Ak .
Amonisation of mtangible asscts 4328 1604
Provision for inventory obsolemencs §15.6% -
Ermnployen stock compengation expense ES cr ] .
Dividend income (13.77) (L24)
L on sale of planl. property and equipment 1529 -
Interedt dsome {1.590.20) (1653403
Liabslity written back (.49 -
Finance ooy 12433 -
Unwindsng 6F interest on deferred considerntucn 15.50 -
(Ginhlodt on ade ol invesments LTI bl
Operating profit before workiag caplial ekange 791544 1334727
Mauvermeal in worklag caplal:
Drecreaseincrease) i rade reczinablios {404.81) 2504
Diecrease{increame) = invenlones (2.5T52T) [520.81)
Decreatemcmease) i lozns mad sdhvances (937.26) [330.TY)
Decreasedincresse) i other auicty {4.138,40) {3,683 395
Ineraief{docrease] in trade pryable 1543.79 159,13
Incrensed{decrense] in provigicas GOT.89 [174.04)
Inerease deereasa) in other Liakalite: 114215 __LETIH
Cath generated from sperations I5AD0T 130,87
Direct taves paid (net of mefmds and interes) {1.439.73) jgﬁ.ﬂt
Net cash inflow from operating activities (A) 1199119 539633
B. Cash flswy from nveiting activitics
qulm,ﬂﬂdqlpﬂl%wmiimmﬂﬂﬁmﬂ 41
reeiable B¢ capial gl [13.933.34) {1.47732)
Proceeds freen mle af propery, plam and equipment 4T3 =
Purehats of intanpitle moets (665.11) (TES. 1)
Interear reesived 1.T63.54 16330
Dividendy recetved 13.77 124
Consideration For soquiition of busingsses [nel) (31, 7B6.40) =
Congdemiion for scquistion on shump sle bass [4.05034) =
Purchase of Envestments [73.364.73) [3.789,11)
Proceeds from sale of mvesmenis 55662.48 -
lnvessment in bank deposits (et of maturity ) (41,179.19] FATIET
Net cash used in Investing activities (B) 11,07 538.60) (9.29432)
€. Cash fows from fnancing sctivifics
Proceads from kisusnce of preference share capital 79,108, 10 -
Procesds from rasusnace of equiry share capiral 0.1%
ftercst peid (70.53) .
Pricesds from borowings 10,800:00 =
Repayment af bosrowings (244.84) -
Net cash wsed in financing sctivicies (C) 58, 792.58 =
Met incremseddecpease) in cash and uﬁ-ﬂm.hum—lﬂﬂ:] 424817 (3, 398.00)
Cash and cash equivalents 2t the beginning of the year 67391 407191
Cash and cash equivalents of the end of the year 4.919.88 701
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Physicswallsh Private Limited

CIN: UBIRBUPZOz0PTC 129223

Motes to consolldated financlal statements far the vear ended March 31, 2023
AN ooy in INR fres, evoend ax athenvine simivd)

i ":-'Fl'lirﬂl'lllit Information
Physicswallsh Private Limited (“Physicwallah™ or “the Holdng Company” or “the Parent Company™) is a private limited company domiciled in India and has its registered

'DFEE_E _If_l:rul na, B-R, tower A 101-119, Noida One, Noida Scctor 62, Gmtam Buddha Nagar, Dadn, Uttar Pradesh, India. The HoMing Company together with its
subsidiaries (collectively referred a5 “Geoup™) are principally engaged i the business of education by providing enline and offline coachings and study material for test
preparstions of various competitive exams such as NEET, JEE, de

These consolidated finencial sestements were approved for issue in accondance with a resolition of the dircctons on Decamber 24, 2023

2 Significant accounting polides

21  Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Group have been prepared im sccordance with the gemerally sccepted sceounting prmciples i Indin (Indizn GAAP ) The Cigoap has prepared

these Minancial statements o comply in all materisl respects with the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companics Act 2013 read together with the
C“'"F.Tiﬁ { Accounting Standards) Rule, 2021 and preventation requiramests of Divasion | of Schedule [0 i the Companies Act, 2013, The financeal statements have been
prepared on an scomaal basis and under the historical cost comvention, except for the Tallowing:

* certmn denvative mstruments messured o fair vahae

* asscts poquired and liabilities aspamed on amalgamstion/scquisition in the nature of puschase measured o fair value

* defined bamefit plans - plan assets measured a1 Tair value

* share-based piyments mexsured o Fair vahue

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indisn Rupee (IVR/T). All the vahses are rounded off to the nearest lacs. except when othervise indscated,

2.2 Basis of consalidation
The f{ﬂrﬁﬂli-ﬂllbd financial Ststements inchsde accounts of the Holding Company, its subsidianes (accounted as per Actounting Standard (*AS7-21. The Consolidated
financial Statements are prepared on a line-by-line basis by adding together the vahie of like itan of asets, lishilities, income md expenses after fully eliminating mira-group

halances, intra-group tmasactions and unrealized profit or boss on trmsschions between the entities im the Growp, uniless cos1 cannat be recoverod

The excess of the cost 1o the Holding Company of its investments in substdiarices, over fis proportionate share in equity of the investee company as o the date of pcquisition is

recognized in the consolidated financial statements & Goodwill on consolidation and disclosed on the face of the balance sheet. In case the con of investment in subsidianes
i5 less than the proportionate share i equity of the investee company as on the date of mvestment, the difference is treated s Capital Reserve and shown under Reserves and
Suarplus. Goodwill on consolidation is not amontised. Assesgment is done at each balance sheet date as 1o whether there is any indication that goodwill may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount is made and goodwill whose camrying value exceeds their recoverable amount are written down to the

recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s net sclling price and #s value in use,

The Conzalidated financial Statements have been prepared using uniform policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances md are presented 1o the
extent possible m the same marner 38 the Holding Company's separate financial statements,

23 Correni versus non=current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/nos-current classification. An asset i treated as oument when it 35

- expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

= held primanly for the purpose of trading;

- expecied to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period. or

- cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for ot least twelve moaths after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified & non-curment.

A hiability is cumant when:
- expected to be settled n nomal operating cyele;

- held primarily for the purpose of trading;
- due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or .
- there i no unconditional right to defer the setlement of the linbility for at least rwelve months after the rparting peniod

The Group classifies all other lisbilities as non-cument.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax lighilities are classified as non-cusrent assets and non-cunont lisbilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash amd cash equivalents. The Growp has wdentified twebve months as
ils operating cycle

24  Use of Estimates.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management (o make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
; ' assets and labilities and the disclosure of contingent Liabilities, at the end of the repanting period. Although these estimates are based on the

management s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty shout these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requinng & material adjustment

to the camying amounts of sssets or liabilities in future periods.
: (This space has been intentionally left Mank)




Physicswallah Private Limited
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Motes to eonsolidsied linancial statemsents for the year ended March 31, 023
FA amiounts i INR faca, except ax otherw e siated)

L5 Property, plant snd equipment
Property, plan dmm_w”mhmmmimnﬂufmmmw“ﬂmw-m osscs, i any, The codl commpises

puschase price, bormowing costs if capitalieation criteria are met. directly aftribatable cost of brnging the asset 10 #s working condition for the miended use and mitial
estimafe of decommmissioning, restoring and simmiler Habilities. Amy trade discounts and rehates are deducted in amiving @t the purchass price. Such cost mcludes the conl of
replacimg part of the plat aed equipment When significant parts af property, plast and equipment are requirad 10 be replaced o intervals. the group depreciates them
sopamdely hased on ﬁ:iripﬂ:iﬁnu:ﬁ.ﬂ lrves. .

Giains or losses aristng from derecopnition af property. plant and oguipmond &re mesured as the difference between the net disposal procecds and the camying smount of the
asset mnd are recognized in the statement of profit and |oss when the asset is derecogmized

The group identifics and determincs cost of each companent! part of he asiet separstcly, if the component! part has a cost which is significat to the total cost of the saact
ared has uselfud ife that i materislly different froe that of the romainimg asid
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculaied on & writtcn down vahue aver the mschial lives of msets extrmated by the management. supported by independent

it cssmend by professionals, s below:

Asact category Ligeful lives exiimsted by the Usefull lives az per schedule 11 of the Adt (yeanr)
managemient (years)

[Leaschold Emprovement ims NA

Office equinmenss Iws 5

Plant mnd Equipsmest lwm# 15

botor car Y B

Fumiture and fochires 1] 1]

Electrical Installation Ito 10 Iia 10

| Comgutcr & Peripherals w6 36

The uscful lives have been determined based on managements” judgement which in certain instances are differont from those specified by Schedule 1T to the Act, i onder i
reflect the actual usage of the assets. The assets residual values and wseful Life are reviewed, snd sdjusted if appropriste, ot the end of cach reporting period. An assel's
camying amount is written down immedistely to 1 recoverable mnount if the ssecl’s camying ameount is greater than it estimaed recovershle amoani

1t Imtangible assets
Intangible asicts acquined separately are measired on initial recognition ot cost The cost of intangsble wsets acquired i an amalgamabion/ scquisition in the aafure of
plarchase is their fair value as 2 the date of amalgamation/scquisition. Following knitisd recognition, imtangible assets are carmied at cost less accumulated amonization and
accumlated impainment losses, if sny. Intemally generated intangble assets, exchiding capitalized developmmi costs, are nat capitalized and expenditure & reflected in the
statement of profit and loss in the yoar in which the expenditure is incorred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible mssets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated wseful economic life. The group uses a rebutiable presumption that the usclal bife of = intangible
aisct will not exceed ten years from the date when the asset is svailable for use. IF the parsuasive evidence exists 1o the affect that uscful life of an intangible asset excesds ten
years, the goup amortizes the intangrble ssset over the best estimate of its usefial life All mtangible sssets are ssessed for impairment whenever there 1 an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The smortization period and the snortsation eneshed for mn intangible asset with a finite usefil life are revicwed at least at the end of
cach reporting pericd. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattem of consumption of Future cconoeic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify
the smortisation period of methad. a5 appropriate, #nd are treated as changes In accounling estimates.

atangible assets “.'lld:ﬁ:i': useful _-I-'L'l"? I-Itﬂﬂtmimd,hu are tested for impasmment annually, The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed maually to determme
hether the indefinite L continucs to be suppostable. I nat, the change in useful life from indefinale to fintte is made on a prospective bask

giblc assct hw-npwtﬁqmd{h, at the date the recipicnt obtains control) of when no fisture economic benefits are expecied from its use or disposal.

Ehy hmmmmmdh“iﬂMdum-tﬂﬂmmhmﬁmﬂpwﬁtlﬂﬂnmgmﬂ!hnmﬂ}umchdnd-u
4 than stmtemenst of mmfit sl lnee when the siset is deremnmioad
eyl ples mplido thegroup' tmebe st s follows
¥ © Istangibbe assets Useful lives Amortisation Internally generated or acquired
10 years Struight Line Aeguared
10 years - Straight Line Acquired
~ 3yean Straight Line Acquired
330 years Straight Line Acquared
| 3yen Straight Line Acquired
| 3y  Straight Line Acquired
......... ]  Syeas |  Stmightline Aoquired
(T e s been nieionally ef Blark)
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210 Lesscs

gy T
N n e Medta

'.I,n'-
el

! P %ﬁ%hﬂf”ﬂﬂ the group substantially all the risks md benefits incidental to wwnership of the lessed Aony are capitalized at the incepticn of the

The group assciscs @ each reporting dase whether there is an indication that an sset may be impaired ¥ my imdication cuisti. or when sl smpainment tevimg for m asct
13 requted, the group estimats the asset’s recovershle smount. An asset’s recoverablc amount is the higher of mn wet's or cash-generating wnit's (COU) met selling price and
Wi valee | ose The recoversbie smount ks detesmined for s individual siscl, enle ihe st does et geveraie cash inflows that are lagely indepondent of tsose fom other
EELCH of proupr of sssets, Where the camying amount of s sast or 0L exceeds ity recovershle amouni, the mset it ponsidered impeired md B writlem down 1 ity
Fecaverahle amomnt. In macising vahoe in i, She estimatod fururs cash flows are discounted 1o their present value Using & pire-tae dincomnt e thai reflects cumens macket
stsesamanis of the time valug of moncy and the risks specific i the assct. In detenmining net selling price. rocent market tramssctions are takm ialo account, if mvailsble. I n
wuch tramsacticns can be identified, sn sppropeate valustion model i uied

mﬂwhmh-wwulmmmmmmmmm which are prepared separstely for cach of the proup’s csh-ponerating oaiy to which
the sndividiual ssety are allocsed These budigets and hmluhuhumm‘}'wlpﬂﬂﬁfmm. For fonger penicds. a long temm powth e &
calculated wad spplicd 1o projedt funsre cah flows after the fifth yenr

Impmument basses of continuing opcralions, including impainseni on invenBorics, s recopnkaod in the satement of peofit s foss.
After impairment. depreciation is provided on e rovised carmying smount of the et over it remaining usefis] [ife

An asscasment i made of cach reporting date sx to whether there i3 any indication that previewsly recognized impainment kogics may go boager exist o may have decrewsed. If
xuch indacation exists, the group cutimates the asset’s or cah-poacrating mnit’s recoverable smosnt. A previously recogmized impasent loss is reversed only if there has bheen
'wiﬁﬂmﬁﬂhﬁwﬂihmﬂhmmﬂmhmm losd was recognized. The reversal i limsted so that the camvying
Smouat of the mset does not excend its recoverable amoust, nor cxceed the carrying amoust that would have been determined, net of deprociation. had no impairment ko
been recagnized for the msset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the stalement of profi and boss,

Inventaries
Tnhﬂp_n_:llm'riuadn lm'ﬁ:l'ul'm‘l:ﬂ'lliid:rﬂii.d:lll:'lﬂlh.hﬁ:lﬂhhuﬂnfpr&mﬂﬂhumﬂhﬂrﬂhhﬂ@aﬁ: inventorics to their proient location
&l condition. Coat is detemained oo a FIFO basis.

Het realizable valuc s the estimated selling price in the onfimary course of busisess. Jess estimated coats af completion and cstimated costs necessany 1o make the sale.

Revenur recogmbiton

Revenue & primanty derived from educational products md services provided through the onkine and effling platfosss in Indéa. Revenie i recognized to the extent that it is
probable that the cconomic benefits will flow to the group ind the rovenue can be relishly measurod. The Following specific pecogaition criteria must b be met before
FEVERLE S Fecoymitsal:

ehlzof preducs ;

Revenue from sale of goods is recognired whem all the significant risks and rowaeds of owncrship of the goods have been passed 1o the buyer, ussally on delivery of the
goods. The group collects Goods and Service Tax (GST) and other taxes on hehalf of the government and, therefare, these arc ool coonomic benefils flowing to the group.
Revenues fiom coaching services are recognized pro-rats over the penod of the coetract s sad when services are rendered. The group collects GST on behalf of the
povernmend and, therefore, it is not an econcenic benefit fowing to the group. Hence, it 45 excluded froem revenue. Incoune from youtube senices me recpnised on accrual
busis. Conecm ibrary md ropstration fees are recognized upfront a substantial perfoomance obligation is met

Ouher ingome . -
Interest income is recognied on & Ve propostion hasis taking into account tre amount cetstandisg mnd the rate applicable Dividmd income i5 reengmised when the night 1o
LG m tm ; :

s
the fai value of the leascd proporty md present value of mimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioncd beween the Mnance charges md
ity 50 85 10 achieve 3 constant rate of interest on Be rewmsining balance of the lisbility. Finance charges we roognized as finance costs in the

AL s

o Bl T

P o e
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ot g Ry

o gL
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A fomed ko s s line bsis ovrthe sl e of the et Howeer, i e i o rcsanable crainy th e gy il ciain he ownerdi by

| msset is depreciated on a straighe-line basis over the sborter of the stimated useful life of the asset or the lease tom

e e T s ;
ely retaims substantislly all the risks and benefits of ownership of the beased item, aee classified as operating leases. Operating lesse paymeants
the statement qﬁuﬁ%-mm“nﬂmm
el | oy i k-
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Emplayee benefits
Shari-ferm ohHgsbisns
Liabalilics Tow wapes and salaries, mncluding mon-moneeary benefies that arc cupected i be setiled whelly within 12 mestdn sfter the end of the perosd in which the employees

resvder the relsted serics s rocemned in pespect of omploye’s servbor i 62 thie end of the peportmg peaniosd §nd are messured &t the ssounts oupeciod ta be pasd whm e
lishrilaties wre semied The HabilRies are presented ms curment 1iabalitie in the eonsolidated balince shees

Accumslabed lesve, which is expected to be utilined within the ool 12 sonihs, s bmed @ idorl-lam eoployee bmelit. The Eoup messurs the epected con ol such
absences a1 the additional mmount that it exprets fo pey a5 8 ek of thie meeted oetiilement test bas sccumulanod at the reporting daie. The group peesenis the scommulaied
leave linkality as & carmont laahiliny in the baancs abeet, timoe i does a0t have an unconditbonal rxght to delior its, seitiemant For bwelve months after the nepering dse

Fet-employment obligatisns

The presp oporates the followstg poat casploymen] schomes

(&) defnod bamefit plans = gratuiry, msd

B delmed contrbaubion plans ssch & peovedent fund.

(eratwity: Defimed benelitn oblipationa

Thhe lishillity or asset recognised im the halance sheet in rospeet of definsd henefit gralusty plan is s present vabse ol the definad benefit oblgration o the o of the npaitng
perioad bess B Fair vabue of plan assets. The defined benefit oblipation & caboulsted smually by an indepessdont actunry uding the projected uait coedit method

[kefined contribwlion plan
Retirement benefit i the fonn of providest fund scheme are the defined contnbubion plans. The group has so obkgation, other than the contmbubion payable. The group

fesopnizes conbution pavable to theve schemss 1 @ expenditare, when e eeployes renders the rebated senice

lav mimvents
Investments, which arc readity realizable and intended 10 be hedd for not more Ban one year from (Be date on which such investments are made, are classificd as surrent

spcitmmis. Al other investments are classified a5 long-temm nvestmente.

Cm mitial recognation, all mvestments we messsred m coat’ The cos comprises purchaax pisce sl dmealy smnbutabde scquisition charges such as brokersge, “"_" ] ot
I an investment is soquired, o parthe sequired, by the tiste of shares o otser securifies, the sequitificn cost s the fair valug of the securities wsuad I an investment &
sequised In evchmyge for anceher asset, e acqunition is detensined by refeemnce ta the fair value of the axset given up or by reforence to the far value of the Evestmen
sagiidad, whichewr b more dearly ovadent

Current investments ae carsied in the Financial stalemais o bwer of cost and fair value detemmined oa an wndivideal imvestment basds, Long-term imvestmants arc camied af
coat. Hewever, provision For diminution i valee is made i0 recognize a docline other thin teamponsry i the salue of the mnyesiments

On disposal of 8 invesbsnt, Bhe &ilfcrence between s carrying mnount and net dispossl procesds is charged or crodsted o the sistesncad of profit mnd bois. Investments are
measured on FIPO b

Emplyyee share baved paymseal 3
Employees (mchading seador excestives) of the group recdive rotancralics i the foam of share-based pryments, wherehy employees render servicos a8 consideraison for
Uty inaTPEnan b {equity-sefiiod tramusctions}. The cost of equity-settlod fransactioss is desemrined by the fair valac 1 the datc when She great 15 made wEmp &R appEepealc
valuastion model 3
That cost b5 recognised, fogether with. a coeresponding increase @ sbare-based pavment (SBF) reienes moquity, over the wear in which the performance ard'of servioe
conditions are TelBlked in employee bendits cxporie. The cursulative expenso recosniaed Eof equity settled transachions. at each moposting date wniil the vesting date rellects
the evient 1o which the wating v has expired and the group's beit estmate of the pumber off cgay instrumants chst will :u]li:ﬂt}y vest. The EH.PEI'H.‘D'I' crodit 'm the
consobdated wist ement of prodit and Jods for 8 year represends the mavement in cumpalative expense reoogn od ai 31 the bepnning and end of that year s is recognised
crgilinyee beneFils expiie :
Eorvice and mon-markel performance coaditions are nol liken i#ln aocount whos defeomming tee gt date fair saloe of awarde, but the lidihood of the :mdll'r:l!u brmg.
met it assesiod as part of the company’s boit eitimate of dee nismbor of equity instruments that will ultimately vesl, Markat porformasse conditions are reflectzad within the
grant date fuir vabse. Amy other conditions aftached to mn weasd, but without m associabed servise Feuirameni, are comidered fo be mon-vating mediless. Mon-voing
conditions arc rellected i the i value of s award and lead 1o #n imenediate expensing of m swand unless there are alio senvce andor performence conditions. No expense
s rosognised for awards that da nof ulimatch vesl begsise mon market pafonsmsis o service condifions h.lr.-eznm I:IIEEI:I meL 'li'u:her-l avards include a mukal of aih-
vesting condition, the transactions arc treated a vested irrespective of whether the market o pon-veating sondition is satisfied, prenided dhad all olber perfonmance anild'on
service gonditions ane satafiod. b
When the fepms of an cquity-scitled awand are medeicd, the minimum expenac recognised is the expense bad the ters had not Been modificd, d'.lhc oamgimal leoms of the
gnard age met. An sdditional exponse s recogmised for any inod ificacos that mscreases the tolal fair sabkec of ihe sbare-baed payees) trenssctson or is otherwise benelioad 1o
the amployee &s measured of the date of modification. The dilutive effect of cutdanding options b rellectod s addiiional ghare dilufion in the compuiation of dibated camimgs
jrer share

{Thix spoce har been tnvgrtionally feff blank)

[
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Notes to eonsodidated financial statements for the year ended Slarch 31, 2023
(AWl amounty im INR dacs, erceps as etherwise siavesd)

214 Inceme tsxes
frcesms ax
hml‘r-r.'lnmﬁ s lishilstics e mewaed & the mmount cxpeeted 10 be recovorad from or pasd fo the taxation methorities in sccondence winth the noometer Aa, 1961
m’ﬂ'“hﬁl The tax rafes and tax lawy wsed 10 compuis the amoont are thods that are macted or substestively enacted, of the roporting dste.
Current iscome tax relating 80 iteim recopniznd dareetly in equity is recognieed i onuity s pat in the statesent of profit and low.

Delererd tax

“f""ﬂ'ﬂ'ﬂ mmﬂfﬂhﬂhhﬂdd’tﬁgmw tasghle income and siccesting income ongmating dureg the cuetent yrar and revennal al limany
-dnlﬁ!mm for the canlier yean. Deferod o i mesvered nsing the 1ax rafes snd the iax laws enacied or substantively cnscied o the repovting date Delared Beome tex
relating o esn rocopmared direetly i cquity is reoogniznd s equity aad not in the stalemes of peof and less.

Dheferrod 1 labdlitics s mecogniized for all tauable timing differmees, Dieferred tan mvets wre recogrized Tor deductible timing differences sy 10 the rxtert that there it
reasofisble containty that sufficiem funise eaxable Income will be mailable against which mich defored tox assety cm be realized. In sicastions wheve The goup bas
“ﬂl'_llflﬁlﬂq!l'ﬁlﬂh-nrﬂq'mu beises, all deforred tax adsets are recognired only if there s virusl cotsinty supponad by convissing cvidence that they can be
realized against funire taxable peofits. ; '

At cach reporting date, the group re-misenics unroongaized defored tax msets. N recognites snrecomized deferred ten asset fo the extent that it has Becomns reasonabily certan
o virtually ceram, as the case may be, that sufficient fiutire tavable income will be available against which soch deforred tec assets can be realized. The camying amount of
defemed tax sicts are reviewed ot cach srposting date. The group writes-down the camying amosmnt of defomod Tax mact 1o the extent that it 6o longer reasonsbly certsm or
wirually cenas, m the case muy be. that sufficient fuure txxable imcome will be available against which deferrad tax saet can be realized Amy such arite-down is reversed
1o the extcnd that it beonenes romonably certaim or virtually certain, as the cane may be, that sufficiest funsse taxable income will be mvailable.

Dreferred tax assets and deformed tax liskslities we offset, of » legally enforceable right exiats to sct-ofT current tax asscts against curnmd tax liabilisies and the deferrod tax
fssets and delerved ot relate b0 the same taxable ootity snd the same tacation methority.

LI5 Sq-utropnrﬂ":
In view of Accounting Standsd 17 “Sepment Repening” sisued by the hstitute of Chanered Accountants of India the disclossrs in sespect of segeent infoemstion for the
year cndied March 31, 2023 is not spplicable % the group m the group does mot deal in varied products.'services and hence not exposed o dsffrent ks and retams

216 Earnings per share .
Buasic casnings per share are caloulased by dividing the net profit or loss for the period anributsble to equity sharcholders (after deducting astributable taves ) by the weighted
wmd%iﬂ outstanding during the period, For the purposs of caloulating diksed casnings per shasre, the net peofit or loss for the period attrbatable 1o
equity sharchalders and the weighted aversge number of shases cutitsnding during the period sre sdjutal for e effects of all dilutive potestial equity shares.

The dilutive efect of outstanding opions i reflociod 43 sdditional share dilution in the competarion of dileiod camings per share

217 Provisions ) |
Provisions sre recogniied when thor o5 8 prowont oblipatson as a roidt of @ past evont, 1 is peobable that an cunflow of resources embodying economic bencfits will be
roquired to settle the obligaiion and there is @ reliable estimate of the mmount of the cbligation. Provisions sre mensured of he best estimate of the expenditure required to
- wettle the present obligation af the Balssce shest date and are not discounted to its presend value.
 Contingent liabilitics ane disclosed when theer 52 possible oblagation anising from past cvents, (B exivtmee of which will be confirmed only by the ocosrmen or noo-
 occurrence of one or more uncertain fiture events not wholly within the control of the group or a peesont ohligation that arwes from pat evests where it is either ot probable
 that an cuflow of resousces will be required 0 settle or & relishle evtimate of the amount cannot be made.

?Idl.#l- "

219 Cash
Tl

n Mwimmllmﬂnﬂmwm ment comprise cath ot banks and im hand and shost-temm deposits with mn origaal mansity of thioe months
. which are subject to an msignificant risk of changes in value

=~

hqmmﬁmwfnﬁmﬁh:-lmwmw on the aurent profit or loss cam be
o o e vkl S o o e o i P i b Ao . st £ s st o 7 o
ng accouting policics, mixistepectation of facts, oravensight
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Notes to comsolidated financis] statements for the year ended March 31, 2013
A aamomms b INR locs, exvent ay ouberwine statesd)

321 Foreign currency translation

Farvigm currency e tions and balicet

{1} Enitial secopnition
Forcign cumency trassactions are revended in the roposting, cuImency. by applyimg to ve Toreign curency amesnt the exchange rate botwomn the reporting currency and the
foreign cusroncy af the date of the transaction.

(i) Conversan
Fﬁpmmiwlhw“.thwﬂi‘iﬁlmm Mon-monctary ems, which are meadmed in terms of historical ¢os
mwhlrwm_mmmhmm’mrﬂnfhmwm Non-monciary items, which are messared at fair valse or other simalar
valuation denominated i a forcign currency, sz translated wsing the cxchange rate ot the date when aich valoe was determmed

{uii) Exchamge difforences
The group sccounts for exchange differences ansing on translation’ seiiloment of foreign uTency menctasy flems s bahorw;
I. Exchango difforences anising on & manelary isem that, = subsiance, forms part of the compamy s nel mvestment in & non-tegrs] foreign operation i scommulsted in the
wmnﬂmmﬂlhwqfhmhmﬂnﬂ-w af avch pel Evestment, the curmlative amount of the exchenge differences which
have been deferred and which relate 1o that investment is recognized &8 iscome of 3 expenses in the same period i which the gain of bosy on disposal is recognined
2. Exchange differcnces arising on long-term foreign currency monstary items related 1o acquisition of a property, plant snd equipment and intangible asscts are capitalazed and
depreciated ovier the remadning wseful 1 of ke aset
3. Exchamge differences arising on other long-term forcign currency monctary Hems are sccumalated in e “Foreign Currency Mosetary Hem Translation Difference Accosnt™
and smoetized over the remaining b of the coscemned monetary Bem.
4. Al other exchange diTerences are recognized s income or os expenscd im the period in which they arise.
For the purpose of 2 and 3 above., the company treats a foneign monetary item ns “long-torm foreign currency monstary #em”, if it has a teemm of 12 months or more o the date of
its origination. In accerdance with MCA circular dated 09 August 2012, exchange differences for this purpose, are total differences arismg on long-teem fomeign cumency
monctary items for the penod. In other words, the company docs it differentiste botween exchange differemces anising from forcign curency borrowings to the exient they ar
regarded as an adjustment 1o the interest cost and other exchange difference.

For the parpose of consolidation, income and expenses are translated at average rates and the assets and lisblitics are stafed af closing rate. The net impact of ssch changs
nociimulated ander foreign camency trandlation resenve

111 Derivatives sctivities .
A derivative is & financial instament or other contract with all ghree of the following chamcteristics _ ;
- its value changes in response to the change in 3 specificd inbeeest rate, financial instrument price. commedity price, foreign exchange rale, ndex of prices o rates, credit g
or credit index. or other variabbe, provided in the case of a pon-fimancial variable that the variable is not specific 10 » party 1o the contract (somctimes called the “undelying),
= il Fequires no initisl pet investment or an inital i vestment that is snaller than Mhmm#muhrmﬂwmuwnﬂdhmﬂw have a similar response
to changes in masket factors; and '

% TFMWTHMM:MMW
- All derivative contracts should be recognised on the balance sheet and measured at fair valie.
2 Subapoctly, the group emeasares s dervaives . each reporig dfecn e v it hanges i i ol bing ecogaised n he saement of profe s loss

e e P

sisbio .. hl-'l

TR T S B

_":J[Ii il sitian of M&fﬁhmmnﬁhﬁshm_hhmwhmmwhﬂﬂmmumhdhﬂmth14H-

e g
d iy g i LA

: :mﬁww:hiﬁrﬂhpu@ﬁufmﬂﬁmThmuwh:ﬂ::wiulum. of the transferor

o the q{ﬁ.‘ﬁ'ﬁﬁ{ﬁhﬁﬂuﬁcmm'mﬁﬂkmﬁam&nﬂllrhnm:dﬁnmﬂmhhﬂ:hnlh:

sl i@:ﬁ:ﬁtfﬂﬁwmqﬁﬁmmmnmEﬁ.m.wﬁnﬁmpmmammmmm
\ccartingly, goodwill arising on scquisition af business on slump sle basis is amortized. Goodwill arising on consolidation ion i not
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Notes .l- Tonunlidate i
d fimsarinl viatem
TR ire EA . L emby Ber il year ooded Smech 51, 3623

35 eapital - Al Aw wl
wr b 31, 383N
:“hﬂh"‘lh" e 1 ’ll.lll!: FEIY
D000 000 e quiy shares of ENR | each
: Uhbareh 11, DT - 700040, 000 pqueny whares of VR, | eech)
POL0000 0 008% Compuliorily Comveyshie Preference Shares ("CTPS") of INR 00 exch (Mareh 311, 3007 30y lﬁ'ﬁ s
1,630 84 TH:“
:—u-mnm And i cupigd :
m@'-;l:mhﬂﬁm I each (hlarch 31, 2023 500,00, 000 ety shares of ISR | each)
“"“H: 3 Compuirily onserible Preferencs Shasrs (500 PS ) of B 10 esch (March 11, 3033 1 o Yy
55,854 Serien A COPS (March 71, 2053 Bl
$0.00, 004 Seew Al CCPS (Margh 31,202k BEhy ﬁi’:
1_Pik, 47 feid, Bl
Bty % T
i} m'llﬂﬂﬂlﬂnnlﬂml“ thr Brginnlng aad i1 e cad o7 the year
Equlty shares
A ai Ay il
. Murch 31, J0EE March 31, 3033
Particulzn umlry A punl N A
m““!w:*wih“. e 00 0, NN £ {2 uhrm.mu = 1 Bk
Fauity shares awtsisading s ihe cnd of ihe F T Y P
yrar a0 e R0 008 .

(8
Chaing the yebr ended March 31, 2023, the Holdng ;
: . . § company issaed 13 equity shares of DNR | esch, Bally paid-cp a4 of 1 i
has only ome ceiey 3 . premasm of [0 1,124 per share. As on March 31, 200, the Holding compury
mplﬂ}duﬂ:h:im;m;u-hmm abuc of INK, 1= pex share. Each holder of equity shirc iv mstled 1o one vote fir every share bebd in the meeting of equity tharchalders The Halding
iim Rupees The dnkdesd proposed by the bourd of direstan is sbject b0 the spproval of the sharchaiders in the ewuing anmidl geners] meetng

In the event of liquadanon of the Holding company, the holders of equity sha : . =
Sy : ' e Wil by entidled o
hﬂﬂl_hlﬁﬂhtln fsaty ot :I:ﬂ" receive remarting aasets of the Holdng company, aber dorbissa of all peeferennal amoann The

0.001% Compalsorily Convertible Freference Ehwrmi ['E"I:Hi".l

A @l Al
——— i ), 20 Murehs 3i, WE

1 H::#I- Numbars Amounl Sumbery Amasml
iﬂmﬁ-ﬂuuuwdmm s = i .
; < lasugd dexing the year Ha 26 64 54 3 o -
Oreivtanding st the ¢ad of ihe year (A) n:'im ﬁ:.:-? - 5
Series AL

‘Shures cutstanding af e beginning of the year = ) : g
Add | lapoed dering te year P IRLSENE Lthe = g
Outstanding st the end of the year (B) 400,000 i £ =
Total CCPS outstanding at the ¢ad of the year (A+8) R Eeee] : -

 Dnuing the year onded March 31, 2023, the Haolding company iksucd 26,66,654 compuliarly comertble comulative profrenoo (COTPS) of IR 10 each fully paideup si & prempss of INR 1,105 per
memr:w_ﬁmﬁiﬁlﬁﬂﬂMle The H_ilﬁ'mmpm}' declares and pavs dividends in Indian Rupees The divdend proposed by the Bousd of Directors in whjrel 6 tha
sharehobders in the cnneng annual geacral mesgag The Bolders of the Serss A COPS dball be enttled 1o reccive nodee of and vois on all matiars that are submined o the vote of the

‘approval of the share
Sharcholdens (inchuding the holders of Equty Shares).  Each Series A OCPS shall entitke the holder to the sumber of votes equal 1o the sumber of whole of fructonal equty shares into which wch

Optional Comerson: On the converson date, e Series A CCPS shall be converted into puity shares at the coswrion price determined as provided in ageemest The Series A Comerusa Price
nitial fﬂﬁgmmummmuﬁwm Five enly) aad cxch Senes A CCPS comerng into 1 {one) oqusy Shafe, and vhall ba mibiect 1o adpusimant from time 1o Gme
Mandutory conversion: All of the Series A CCPS shall mundatonly be converied in ik sanner and into sch member of fully paid Exquity Shares a4 it determined pormant 10 the rebevant clauses of the
| ageement | xpon the expiry of u|pericd .of 20 {rwenty) yean fhom the date of munce of suck Seies A COPS o mch other period 13 may be permisible wader applicable Law. The Saries A
/ el mﬂ*#ﬂhm”?{m One Thousssd Oae Hundred Twenty Five oaly) and each Seres A CCPS comvesting into | {ooe) Equity Share, and shall be subject to sfustment
¥ J,,iiﬁ;i'lﬂﬂ'miﬂﬂ'm Holding company before comverion/ redessption of CCPS, the holders of COPS will have prionisy over equisy shares in the payment of Svidead and repayment of

e entitled 80 receive notice of and vote on il maniers that are subesimed to the vote of the shareholders (inchuding the holders of Equity Shares). Each

; | m-ﬁ@ﬁ“#mahﬂuﬂwﬁ““-ﬁﬂhﬁhlmm&-um

e I_.__\"...H,\.-_--\..-.._ -._.-ﬂ-q.__. : o, -\. e .\..-. o “‘h- = F“ .mdu II I._ rﬂ‘fﬂ:ﬂ.ﬂli‘li = FH:l
1226 sad cach Series o !‘!@mm,qu}hlhmhﬂpﬂmm“hthhumﬁ&dhhqmu

et aned [ta soch niamber of By paid squity shares a3 s determined pursiint 10 the relevant clauses of the
of such Series Al CCPS or such other period as may be permbiible ander apphicatde Law The Series AL
§ comverting into | (one) equity Share, and shall be subject 10 sduatment from time 1o Gme a3 provided i the

-




Fhyslciwallah Priveie Limised
CIN: UBH#aUPI020FTC129213
Notes te conalidated Minamcisd statements for the yrar ended March 31, 2023
AN amosns i INR ves, wavapt ay pblerudse saed)
(i) Detnils of tharehalders halding mare thas 5% shares:
Ax ot As st
Slwrch 11, B18 March 3. 201D
Farticulsrms M Haldimg ¥ N Halding %%
Eqmity shares of INF | rach
Alakh Pandcy ikt 000,50, 03 50 DI 1,00,00 000 S0 0%
Pratosk Block 1, 061, . 3080 [ 1, [0 01 £ Ly
- - 5,490,005 100,07
0,001 % CCPS of INR 18 ach fully puaid wp
Seriea A
B Venmres Fund L P 559,00 ¥ 50 - -
Wﬂ? S Rptae s ghion - -
T Y : :
M?mhni'ﬂ. LPF L L &% S <
Westridge AFF | S - 1, DN i . 2 :
As per reconds of the Fiolding company. Mﬁqmmﬁuﬂwmmummmmmﬂmmﬂmnﬂqw-ﬁm he above shansholhag repremats
mmmwmam {
' [iEl) Aggregate number of bonms shares isswed, vhares iaued for comsideration other than cash and shares beught back during e perind of five yeary immediately precrding the rrperiing
Ax all Ay sl
] March 3, 2023 Plarch 31, 2OTY

- TS
pﬂdulﬁ!hﬂ.'ﬂ‘ﬂ.h

Hdhmhm&,ﬂm,m fully paid wp mmgmmmmmm1 borus shire kv appreved by the boad Teschson
qﬂﬁﬁmﬂmmmmﬂuﬁnhhmmﬂpﬂuﬂmﬂkmmw

N Mﬂ-ﬂm {ssue under optioss
1 s xﬁn&mmmmmmwmnﬁmwﬁmummn i e
' ' Fi“ﬁl]!r mﬁhh—umimfmﬁﬂu;nkmamnmmﬂfﬁﬂHMMdMﬁm 5
' s TﬁMHﬁnﬂmm-hwﬁhmr

= -
— A0 S S

: ,Hﬁ - y tach promoter |-mmnnrﬂﬂr¢*ﬂ"h*“*"’h

Change during the % change duriag
e AT

2.79.50,000
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N o OMFTCI 083,
. Eed Nimancial sig Al 2L
il .l'_.'q'ﬂh.-_-.‘ ﬂlﬂnr-:.ﬂf-ﬁ'_ﬁ'lfﬂlrlﬁ'llﬁi
Ay wi A al
. Eoo - March 31,2003 Afareh 31, 2033
5 in the siatemen; of profit and ks frefer note 4,1
Premim frefer note 4 7) :I:ﬁ:;: s
e shock options reserve (refer note 4.1) 3 892 62 :
Chosing balance 73,135 68 1881143
A1 E-rﬂul-mm:rm:nrmudlm
:-#mm the beginning of the year 10,013 45 T 62
._Frnﬁl o h_ruf 7 43 2HI 2
Loeas: : @ Bsted during the e B [RE
Less: Adusbmen on asoount of Consolidation . {44m
Add: Reversal of income tax - 1
Clasing halanee 10,901 4% 1001385
Nature and Prpose of Peserve:
Sarplies mhui,nlmm:urmﬁundluunm;mh that ihe Crroup has mmmmu,mmmmumdummmm aharcholders
Thrlnmql.‘rmunh:dumhd the i dividends to s equity sharebolders, o determ e
wre not distributable i entiery, by L L ] ] ned based om the eenents of Comganies Aey, 2003 T, the sncounts reparted above
4.2 Securities premium = =
Blalance ar b beginning of the year 3 =
Add: premium on issue of Series A COPS irefer note 3) 29.733.19
Add: premium on o of Series A1 CCPS (rofer note 3) ST :
mmmmﬁwmmmr“s; ks :
Less: Share issue expense : e -
Clasing balance it 2 L0 -
H'l;hr: and purpose of reserve:

F'mfhillhtmrmﬂwdhyﬂu mqnwﬁﬁm\ﬁnrium.mrmmhlﬂhdﬂhmmp&pﬂmnnm with provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013,

A al Awoat

) _March 31,2023 March 31, 3022
A3 Employee stock Bplions reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year - =
-ﬂdgl:"’:ﬂwe_utﬂmmﬂuﬂmndhﬂﬂlh}mﬁfﬁ:m 3897 62 -
Closing balance — 0T LEL
Nature and purpose of reserve:

Employes stock aption cutstanding reserve is used 1o mﬁ&'i@éqﬂmh fair value of equity-setiled share based payment manssctions with employeey.

As 5t As at
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

W, ol et e :H!-b
Share options e
4 —
Propeictar of ONLYIAS shall be wmm aof the
o one equy share upes paymeed of exercie price of INK 1 peeT opisan (refer

During the year endd March 31, 202, the company has seqked "ONLYIAS- Pussiant fo business purchase agrecment,

10 TNR. 2:444.44 s on the date of the transaction. Every 10 options shall be comverted
‘::-'-m.._ 1 1t R e Yt o | TR T T o AR

es & Edutech Private Limited” and pursuant 10 share purchase apeement, the erstwhile promoters of Utkarsh Classes &
aptions exsrcisable at amy mn‘hlh:l.nqmih date. Every | options shall be converted 80 one ety share upmmwmlul'
1ps ﬂﬁmﬂ.ﬂlh fair valee of such eptions on the acquisition date amounting to IR, $15.79 lacs in line with A% 14 sxcoustmg
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Nodes to consadidated Mnancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

fAll amownts in INR focs, exceps ax mihersiie sued) -
ni Al ot
; March 31, 2033 Alarch 31, DPOTT
§ Long-term borrowing —
Term loans
Term loan from banks {secured ) BUSTH 20 L,
i T8 20

The details !I'nmu-tn-.ruuri-hm-d naiure of securithes provided I respect of term lsan from banks are 21 below:

Term boan from HIFC bank was taken by the holding company dﬂhﬁ: financial year 2022-23 and camics inferest @ 8.9% pa. The boan i repmable in 35 moathly mstaliments of

Eﬂﬂmhuﬁmm iserest from the year ended March 31, 2023, The boan is secured by hypothecation of faminurs & fixtares and other fined sicts nd sccond charpe on
fixed deposits held with HDFC bank amounting to INR 4,000.00 facs,

As ot A ad

' 0 March 31, 3023 March 31, 2022
7 Other long: term lisbilties

F].;&h“ 620 -
mmmﬂmg 10500 :
: o ' 183 45 5
Lease oqualisation reserve (refer note (a) below) | 60627 3
Ewhnmhmﬂrmmmmm 2500 =
Deferred cansideration (refer note () below) \ 169.42 -
ﬂ'; T

e

fﬂ[&hﬁu}umﬂdmzt m-.hmh!mddlﬂgﬁ”mfuﬁppmﬁmﬂﬂ-Imlmgr:uhlpq“ apgregating bo [NR 163299 lacs oul of
boreds xm:ﬁhw&mw

H:;&:tl mﬁﬂmcqqqmumwm for an aggrepeate consideration of DR 3,900.64 lacs. Pursuant 1o the business purchase agreement.
consideration an amount ﬁmwﬂuh{m&muu&:mpmunwﬁmm %0 the proprictor o ONLYIAS, representing non-
ﬁ,.“ In ﬁﬁi!& 14 ¢ ! hmhﬁtmﬂmﬂu Holding Company has recognised such deferred consideration on

: %mmmm;h Hﬂ-ﬁngfﬂmhﬂﬂh}ﬂﬁzp@lﬂmn'ﬂm‘ﬂﬁ-ﬂu liahle to pay MR,
! ﬂmﬁﬂfuﬂ &Mwmmﬂm b-:-..:ru mullhmrn-m 40,
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Meles ta consolidated femuncial siatements for the year emded i el

(G0 eERIN fa TR hacw, SOV a9 e Bned)

B Lang-torm oy ko
Frovision for emplovee bemefits:
Preasiion for gratumty {rclor pote 38

# Shoriderm barrowimgs
Bank cerdsad)
Current ensiurities of kang term b {refer morte 6}
Lom From othery Shne o7

L Trade payabio

Total mutstanding diics of micro et erprases and small enteprises

Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micm ordemrises and asall enloiprie

A wl
Melarch }i, 1023

49181

Ad ak
jul T2 11, ME

1715

491 81

ST.15

(T |
1 TG O
2135

3iia5%

1,835 82
3G e

L
156 53

4P AN

EFEC

Trade payables ageng schedule

A ae March 51, 2023
Owivisnding frem date of invoice

Less than | year  1-X years Y years  Mare than ¥ vears Tatal

15633 % - 0.83 . 1835.R2

Particular “nbsilled Dug Mot dug

Total cotstanding dwes of meceo entorprises and wmall 21145 .

enlErprises
Teial cantstamding ducs of cradines other thes micm O 301
enterpriscs and small enterprises

Drsputed daes of micn eviepiio md small . : 2 E :
ENESAPFiSo

Chaputed dues of oredstors ather than MicTa cRcTprises = - 127 = - =

and srall emlerpmio
Tintal L177.65 . 373649

Tannee .51 - - J A5

Ax al March 3, 2012
= Outstan ding from date of inveice
‘nhilled Dy Liesa than | year -2 wears 2-3 years  More than 3 years

Particulars Not diwe Tatal

G52

Total oeststameding dues of mécro enforprives and small -
cnlcrprses

Total outstandmg dses af ceedibars other than micm . - 166,63 = - =
enterprises and small enferprise

Dhgputed duss of micm micrpriscs and small =, - = -

Dhspated dues of oredors other thas michs catompaises - . - - =

mnd small entesprices

Total o .
There are ma nos-airrond trade payables a5 on March 31, 2023 and o on March 31, 2022,
The amount dee o Mico, small sd malium etcrpnse in te “Miae, snell and medium Entemprise Develogment Ao, 20067 (MEMED) has been dctemmined to the extent such parties
have bemn identified on the basis of mfenmation available with the group, The disclopere relating bo micr, small md medium enterprises (MEME ) e a8 wsier

1TLAS

Partioulars A al As at
March 31, 2023 March 51, T023
{i) The peencipal smount and the interesi duse theroon remaining unpad 1o ey supplier a5 al the end of each sccousiing vear:
Princtpal amoust dug 10 miceo md small enterpnses 1822 39 632
12,93 =
1 BA5.82 631

Enterest due o the above
Tatal
{i1) The mmownt of interest paid by the buyer in teoms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the pryment madc 1o
ifsc supplicr bevend the appoimied diy dusing cach sccoumting year,
(i) The amount of micrest duc and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been pad bt beyond appointod day durmg =
the period ) but witbout adding the interest specificd nder the MEMED Act, 2004
{1%) The amount of mterest sccrued and remaining unpaid ai the end of cach accounting year. 1293 }

{ﬂh.ﬁmﬁfﬁﬂﬁuiﬂﬂﬂmﬂiﬂ'uﬁ:mﬂﬁﬁkm in the succeeding vears. unbl such date when the interes dises as above are
nctuslly pid fo the small enterprise for the purpase of dallowsnce a5 & doductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006:




I‘_Il_- seamallah Private Limited
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Nk b consolidated finamcial statements For the yrar paded Slarch 3., ny

fAN amours iy INR facs CECend a1 exfprenae el

11 Oither curresd b bilities

A ml
Alarch 11, 20X

Ad 8l
Sarch J:l , DOEL

Interesy accrucd but eed due on Isvrronnmps 3330
Dezivative Bability {nefor note 5 belaw) 430,94 -
Unearmed revessos 13 T45.07 TN
Employes benelits pavabic [ 260
Sututory ducs {inchuding provident Fund and tux deducted ai source) 1462872 34144
Adbvanges frim Cus RO 1 .607 31 =
Lesse equilsatian reserve 73 :
Payable i respect of capital poods i 550 03 13 60
Dreferred considerstion {refer note (b bekow) 150 43 .
Chher payahles 171,56 1,374.01%
» AL 455 11
Wiabe: —ﬁ-
!-L_._m'“" with respect bo derivative Uability in relation te pai/fornard cosiracts for acquiring remaining interest in smbaidinrics are an follows;
[_i o, [Name ol enfity, nsture of husiness and details al purchate] Dade of acquisition M. af hares e moguired =5 wiith Derivative Fair vabue of
consideraiinn afqmred minarity marument® derivative at initial
iicrel recogmiticn
Lasedl [ Linkality)
| (TN ises)
t|iNeuron Inbelligence Private Lamited, engaped in the business|  Jamaary 01, 2023 15411 126%%]  67.33%] Put oplion with the 530,54
& provithing onlne ilkng and Wikll]l.np COUrSes | A varpety shareha lders af
of exhsokhpy domaing inchoding  dafa woisnce, aevilbesl NG Y inlerest
mtelligence, web development ete. thromgh the websile and

ather channels snchiding mobdle appbcations

{1 Dharmg the year ended March 31, 2023, the Holding compary scquired ONLYIAS for an agprepgate comsideration of INR 3900064 lacs. Pursuant to the business parchaso agrecment, out
I::Flhi.‘.' meniioned porekase consderation an amount of INR 93,18 lacs {including sccrued miorest) is payable o December 21, 2023 representing curreed portion of 1he aggregate labilny, In
lime with AS 14 accounting for amalpamation & ke mabue af purchuge, the goup has recognised ssch defemed cansideration on it fair valae 23 on the date of acyumsthon wsmg the eilestve
inierest rale method.

[hring the year ﬂﬂ_"d Mazch 31, 2023, the Holding company acquared 31.68% shares in &Nguron [mellgence Private Limited for an aggregate conssderation of INR 7 948 14 lacs. Purssan)
tor the share acqmistition term agreement, out of the mentioned purchage cosgiderstion an amaunt of INR 372,84 |acs {including acerued interest) i payable on December 3F, 2023 In line
with AS 14 accounsing for amalgamation m the natee of purchase. the oup has recogmised sich deferred considemzon on s fir value a3 op the dile of atquadition udmg the cfectve
inberest rade method

During the yrar eoded March 31, 2023, the Holding company acquired 100% shares in Knowledge Planct Holding Limsted for an aggregate consideration of INR 2.071.04 lacs. Pursuant to
the share acquistition ferm agreement, out of the mentioned purchase consideration an amount of INR: 284 60 bies is payable on Jamary 31, 2023, In Bne with AS 14 accounting for
smalgamation i the nature of perchase, the Holding company has recopised such defermed consideration on its fiir value as on the date of acquisition wsimg the effective imerest rale

miethad
As mi Asoatl
March 31, 2023 Mlarch 31, 2022
1I Shori-term provizions
Frovision for employee benefits:
Provizion for gratisty (refes note 35) 2425 0.0
Prosmsion for compersied absence 41806
44331
LR

{This space hay been infetranally left Mark)
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Mades bo consalidated Snancial sniements far the year ended March 31, 2023
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Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: US0900U PZ020PTC 129223

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in INR lacs, except as otherwise siated)

18 Deferred tax balances

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Deferred tax Habilities ’

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets: Impact of difference between Fisas :

tax depreciation and depreciation/ amortization charged ﬁ:rth: firancial reponing

Deferred tax liabilities 216,89 —

Deferred tax assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets: Impact of difference between 165.12 015

tax depreciation and depreciation’ amortization charged for the financial reporting

Disallowance for provision of expenses 175.51 481
Provision for lease equilisation reserve 412.70 .
Provision for Envemory 207 80 s
Provision for doubtful delis and advances 109.78 -
Others 27.14 131
Deferred tax assets 1,098.05 6.47

Notes:
mm&m offsets tax asscts and liabilities if and ondy if it has a legally enforceable right to st off current tax asscts and current tax
Hﬁhﬂmmﬂ“ﬂnm ‘tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tx authority. In addition. the
FMIWH:EIH 1o settle on a net basis, to realise the deferred tax assets and settle the deferred tax liabilities simultaneously.
sin '_ the  realizability of deferred tax assets, management corsiders whether it is probable, that some portion, or all, of the deferred
:IHIHHL The u]linut m&uﬂ‘mnrde&rmd m: assels is dependent upon the g;m:munn of future taxable income durnng
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Phyvicsmallah Privaie Limiied

CIN: UBOHOS P 2020 TCY 29223 _

Meles b ramialidased finsarial statrmean far the yoar cnded Marvh 31, 3010
FA Y o naraty IR docn, erveps o ofbaraing [TTIR ]

j

-, ae
IS

: f H_ixﬂ . ‘.i.ﬂ.\.'-::'r'i'in'ﬂv-?~--'\-.I:-'I':\. '..'I .

e

I":'._I-.-.-:

di

5

Wo# s ¢ mded Wamr gmided
Mllaarch JE, DAY Nlarch 31, De2d
36 Ruvenne fram operaiam T
Sak of serviors TLOES 34 M52 T
Sale of producis 8581 &1 AT W
‘:‘“’Fwtﬂhl'-t-ui 134, 84 5
J7.FEERN R E AT
Sabe 4l produgty (st of Gooib and Service Ta)
Trnded guxads & T 6 1 T80 18
LT daTH0
Sale ol pervice
lacome from coucking serviees TOSETT M 4679
h-‘*ﬂﬂiﬂﬂfn; ey TR
Jod Inzn.mm
Aalverh weet it smcome H!.ﬂ. ¥
A0 i T
ET Duber indeme S
Taiterrsd i mramme
Wteren invome carned on
Dhepomios winh bask 1,4 33 165 0
Tows Et ] -
Tncome ean refurd 00 %
' 135030 14230
My
Lictsnp imscome {net of cost) FIS A -
Diniend income e (ET
Cain o settemest of frward conran® T
Wﬁuﬂ-ﬂimhwﬂu 10% *
et gin on male of mvesimen! s mutal fimds, T4 56
Serap eales 1644 .
Liabilsy vwrimen back 240 .
Croas charge income 18 5% -
o LN 6
Tetal ather income Ef [ 'ﬁl
“lﬁ“ Wﬂlfmﬁm#wim Uy BEQEATON BFecment, whith wei iobsequenty sented by the goup due 1o cancellason of
I' .. -..-..-.. -“ﬂ-h_ i i ! L '
RES L b A0S &7
: 3828 -
'1 143531 i 40
i 1043 53 -
454,70
—— S I LR
il 650 62 1A% 40




Physicywsllsh Privabe Limited
CIN: UBA S UT 1030 7T 39523

Netes ta compslida ted finamcial viatements for the year snded Sarch 31, 2013
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Incomme txu
GST amd otbers :
Umwinding of imserea on deferred comsderation (refer note Th

13 Deprecistion and smartization rijease :
Deprecabon on propeety, plam and eqepescnt (refier pote 151
Amorarason of mtanghle wssets (refor not 140

M Impsirmesi on intaspibe st
Enpairment an poodwill (refes mote 14)
Imparment of i nege Aitet ireles Bose 146

Yoear cabed Y or raaled
March 35, 33 blmre 31, 3003
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Physicowallal Frivete Limied

CIN: VB0l P 220FTC 12911

Notes ta consaBidsted Fmmnrial statrments far he prar ended March 31. 2023
(Al wmmimesty vy FN bocn. eae el o otheorai e agaied)

) Details of CSH Evpendiner
Farticulurs d

Woewr eaded W paaded
P L Mareh 31, 3023 Mwrch 31, 2023
i} Cirona wmount requined to e apesi by th Croup dunag the ¥ ear 140 3 ET]
b Amoust sppreved b be spesn by boad of direciorns D 8 (1 &1
I cul Vet b be guid in cmh Tatal
€} Amsuni aprnt during the yrer ended March 31. 2013
i of et - . -
i) D purpasen other than (i) showe F40 24 . 140 38
df Ampumi ypeai dwrisg the year ended March 31, 2022
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B Emplayee bearfits plan
glhﬂtlulﬂ-ﬂ-i- pluns - Fresidemi Fand, E5] and laboar seifars fusd
M%MHMWHHWMﬂmMW*Inmmﬁ fow quakfyog Uy e i,
the group i Fequred 1 contribuse 5 ipacifind prrcemtage of e payroll conts 86 fund the besrfits The growp recognined DO 896 99 kaca (March 11, m*_r-:;,:‘” lacnb T Prividest
Hﬂ#ﬂuﬂmmhﬂ-“mﬂwﬂﬂh The consrbacions payehle i these fam by the gop are al rates specifed in the rebes of B schemen
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i"-n:n 19 ennvididated fasncial siatrments far ghe year ended March 11, 2023
FAN oy i AR SR, ey ani ety el

3 Employee Stock Cipiisa Flas

Emplayre Share Oaprion Plan (ES0P)
The Froup provides thane-based pans 1 schormnes o ®e crplovess. Dunng dhe yoar endad MMamk 31 1oy o anphayec slack optum plm (E30F) wm in rustence
The relevant detaily 0f ihie b gl the mrem are o bolyw ¥

:'mp-h_-ﬂ Share Oprion Plan 1021
he holding compamy provides shige-basal paymon schomes i i omployoes. The relevast detady of i schome wnd the grant aic s below

;T:"rlh':':"“ b, J'J‘J':.l. e Board of Direclors sppeeved dhe oty seitled "Employees Stock Option Plan 2002° for ssue of siock options i varkess employvess of the
LR wm; :;’I:j::! ::L:T."IHTIE the amplevess will be entiiled apiions. mshperl 1o their conlinoed ormpleyymest with the holdong ooy The oiher

::::i.: of shares Equity shams
- P Fonsr-year vesting $oom wed vent o the rale off 29% i the flesi year mnd & 25% cach quarter from the fira
quarier of the second yemr @d booome fully excrcaable. subject i ooplovee being in the cmpleymont of the
Company

Thece-year veating borm and vest ot dae rate of 3% im the first vear and B 5% each quarter from ehe Frst
guarter ol the vocond year evd become fully exoreiable. ssbject o omployes being im the employmeont af the

Compay.

Three snd half’ vear veting trom and vesi af the mie of 23456 in the fina vear and 7 5% cach guarter from the
fisut uastor of the second year snd booome FRally exercisable, subject o employes being m the eeployeme of
b Company

Twn b1t Ir".'ll‘irl,F fenm amd vesi w1 the rate o 30%% i the Tzt year mnad 12, 5% each qpearier romm (b (Bl

quaster of By second yeu mal Beanne Tuly exergnable, subyect {o cmployes being in tha ompleymemd of the
Company

T and half year vesting Serm mmd vest ot the rate of 40% in the first year sd 10%% each quaster froe the il
gaarter of the sovond year and become fully exercisnble, subjsct 1o erglivee being in the gl of the

Carmpany.

Cine year vesieng berms and sest 51 the rste of 10075 in the flavt vear s becosae fullly exerciaahle, subpect to
eesploves bemy in o omploymont of the Company

leﬂﬂ_lilﬂ W (Lo, 10 Options will convert into 1 Eguity Shanc)
Exercite price B |
Mavemonts during the year
The fial e e rdimrdser and w average exerose prices (WAEP) of, and movemests in, share setions during the vear:
A ad ' Aa ai
March 51, IOLZS March 31, 2012
’ Particulars Mo, of eptions WAEP [INR) Mo of opliens WAEP [INR)

Ohitstanding o the begnnsng of the vear - - = -
En-ldlhg' IJ:EE‘ 335,24 %12 1K) =
Farfcited' expined dusing che vear 19,630 L) = =
Exercised during the vesr : z .

{Outstmnding st the end of the year 1.34.55 282 1.0 x| =5 |

* T gervseared afeares tocluly “dows roumd™ diowure
The weighled sversge lnir value of the opdions granted during the year is DVR 62771 (March 31, 2022: Will)

The weighiod mempe romasing contrachaa life for the siock options oetstanding & al March 31, 2023 5 157 years (March 31, 2022: Nil), The range of cxercise
prices For options cutitesding af the end of the year was INE 1 (March 31, 2022: Nil),

ing the 1ed T value soaiiderng the fallowing impuis
At A at
March 30,2023 March 3, 2022
P -3 -
Risk-free interest rale (%) | TP =
lifie of the options S ARs granted {in yess) | l'ilﬂ .
r s shawm in the following table:
Year ended W ear ondied ]
March 31, 2023 Alarch 31, 2022
share-based payment plan 382119 |




Fhyzleswallah Private Limited

CIN: US00 LUP2ezaPrT 129223

Mates to consolidated Baascial sistensents Tar Che vear ended March 31, 2023
fAL smirnints tn INR bacs, exoeps ax mtherw ise stared)

40 Business sequisitions
in}  The Holding company has entered ko certam business purchase apreananl {i.¢ sump mbe). details of which ere as under.

iy ONLYIAS Nothing Else Acquisition :
The Holding company had enfered indo Business purchise ent with gole proprietor of OMLYIAS on Decomber 31, 2012 0 atquee i3 coachang class
husiness which constises 5 busmess for a fir valoe of cath copstderation of INE 1,200.00 lacs, fair value of defared consideration of INR 25620 s and
fair vabue of share options amounting 1o INR 2,444 44 lecx The Holding compamy has accounicd for the amalgmation under the purchase method and
recognized assets and liabilities acquired at fasr vahue The excess of purchase consideration pasd by the company over the aggregate vakie of the net sssets

soqaired has been reated as poodwill, to be smorized over a pariod of 5 years from the date of amalgsmation.

The following table presents the purchase consideration, faic vahie of asset sogiired and poodwill recognised on the date of acquestion (ie. Jamsary 01,

2023}
Life Amount
i0 yer 1, 08006
3 yoars IR9 B4
3 years 30.38 |
1,500, 0
Fllrliﬂarm consideration (B) 3,500, 64
Goosdwill arising on acquisitien (C = B - A} 2,400.34
SR COM aarion 25620
Dieferred conaderatian e
Equity oplions ;

Total purchase consideration

(i) Top Tak Education Acquisition : . :

The Holdin g ﬂ...-'{l"l!l". ~had entered mto Business purchase agreement of sole proprictor of TopTak on Janaary 01, 2023 to acquire s coachimg cladss busmess
and recognized assets and labilitics acquired af far vakie The excess of purchase comsideration paid by the company over the aggregte vakie of the oet
gsets acquired has been treated as goodwill, 10 be amortized aver a period of $ years from the date of amalgamaticn.

“The following table presents the purchase consideration, fair value of asset acquired and goodwill recognised on the date of acquisition (Le. January 01,




Fhysicswallah Private Limited

CIN: URISMRUPI0200TCi 20210

Nofes to consalidated financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
FAN amauriis i INR facx, exoept oy stherwise siated)

(b} Pempencil Edu Sarvices Private Lamfed has enfered inlo cortain business purchase agreemant (e shimp sale), detads of whach are as under:

(i} Bothra Classes Acquisition
The Company had entered into Business purchase agreament with Mr. Rakesh Manglal Bothra HUF, of Coaching Classes Busmess on October 17, 2022 1
acquire its coaching class business under the brand name Bothra Classes which constitutes a business for a consideration of Ra 210.00 khs The company
has accounted for the mmalgamation under the purchase method and recognized asets and Kabilitics acquired at far value The cwess of purchase
consideration paid by the company over the aggregate vahue of the net asets soquired has been treated as goodwill, 10 be amortized over a period of § years

from the date of amalgmation.
The following bl presems the purchase consaderation. fatr value of asset acquired and goodwill recognised
Life Amount
I yearn 15821
3 years 31510
5 vears 100.91
Lto 3 years 8126 |
65548
Fair valise of purchase consideration (B) : 2,100.00
Goodwill arising on acquisition (C = A - B) 1.444.52
Purchase consideration Amount
Cash consderation 2,100,00

Tokal parchasr considenstivg 2;100.0

 Business purchase agrecment with ETO0OS Education Private Limited, a private company on December 02, 2022 1o acquire
mpﬁhu'mmﬂlrr-liﬁuﬂmm under the brand name of ETOOS India which constitutes a business for a
The company has sccounted for the amalgamation under the pairchase method and recognized assets and habilities acquired at
;'ﬂbhmnmhwmnrm“ﬂmmu:ﬂMMHﬂmdum 1o be




Physicvwallah Private Limbted

CIN: USIR00 LUP 20200 TC12922)

Notes to consolidated financis] ststoments for the year ended March 31, 1023

FAT amourts in INR lacs, exceps ax othereise sposed)

(C} The Holdng compamy has entered nto certain share purchuse agreament, detils of which are s undar:

i} Proponlise Futurist Private Limited
The Holdng company had entored o Share purchase apreemmit with Prepondme Putunist Private Limited, on March 17, 2023 to acquire 10% stake m its
coaching business which consitutes tve and recorded classes for competitive cxams alongwith publishing and sellng of Btaary works and course materials
for a far vakie af cails considerytion of INR 40000 b Further, as part of the Share puchaie spreament. the remaming sharelsolders posios svap opton
that allws exchange of thew shares al a predetermined ratio of 11921 st amtime after the clamg date

Thie fair valoes of the dentifable assets and lishilities of Preponkine Funanis Private Limited a5 at the date of scquiition were

Amomnt 5l fsbr valee
1444
.26
w33
12799
Scparatcly identifiable intangible asvets recognised
Brand 4511
Content 32049
Dhzinbaition network 129848
Mon-compee fes 243 |
k.68
Liabilities
Cuarent labdites 17560
175,680
Tatal identifiable net assets o1 fuir valwe 456,08
1153
43747
145608
TR

() Kaewledge Planct Holding Limited
-mmmmmmmﬁzm.mm Knowledpe Plamet Holding Limited, on December 28, 2022 to acquare 1007 sake m
-hmmﬁHMWhmmw:mm-ﬁl value of cxsh considerstion of [NR 1.786.44 bics and Bir
walue of defomed consideration amounting to [NR 284.60 lacs. The Holing compary has accownted for the share acquisition and recognized asscts and
hhihuqﬁﬂn&uh

Thqm#mw uﬁnﬂhﬁn uananthd I-InH:u.. I.nhduu.lﬁ:—-hhnh;nquhhu were:

1217
96,01
49243

TE3.30
136,50

152041 |

.

El.'!l- \. '.!I %

) L el

L
|

T04.17
o417




Physicrwallah Private Linslted
CIN: UBDSLP2020PT C1 29223

Nates to consslidated Bnancial statements far the year ended March 31, 1023
(AR vt i ENR acs, exceps ax nplene tie siabed)

(ldy  Utkarsh Classes & Edwtech Private Limited i
The Holding company had entered imio Shara purchas agreanct with Utkarsh Clases & Edutech Private Limitad, on February 18 2022 b0 soquire 51%

sake i its clyinsy busnew Hmimprmﬂmhlhmﬁnmuﬁlmmmuluuf-r-m:
nru.ﬁm ﬂM1£m;hnﬂMme" & amounting 10 INR 518 80 lacs. Further, A3 part of the Share purchase spooment
hmm'mﬂm-hﬂmumlhmﬁlhﬁnﬂlpﬂilrwnmﬂnmﬁfﬂﬁﬂuﬂhhﬂm
the perfarmance {profit after ta) of Uilarsh Classes & Edhitech Private Limited

The fuir vahses of the identifishle xssets and liabilities of Utlarsh Clazses & Edutech Private Limited as at the date of acquisiton were:

T.651.20
19.3%
204 8%
5 38ATE

&, 130l
1,740,85




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: USH0UPZOZOPTCI29223

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Al amounts in INR lacs, except ax otherwise stated)

{iv)  iNeuron Intelligence Private Limited
The Holding company had entered into Share purchase agreement with iNeuron Intelligence Privale Limited, on December 23, 2022 1o
acquire 32.68% stake in its coaching classes business to students which constitutes o business of providing online upskilling classes
through their website and mobile channels for a fair value of cash consideration of INR 7,053.56 Iscs ond fair value of deferred
consideration amounting to INR 36364 lacs. Further, as part of the Share purchase agreement, the remaining sharcholders possess swap
option that allows exchange of their sharcs at o predetermined ratio of 4.98:1 at anytime after the closing date.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of iNeuron Intelligence Private Limited as at the date of acquisition were:

Particulars Amount at fair value
Assels
Property, plant and equipment 336.36
Intangible assets 89225
Non-current asscts 954.64
Current assels 560,70
Separately identifiable intangible assets recognised
Brand 4,098 33
Content 1,568 89
Softwares 38902
Non-compete fees: | 405.70
: Non-current liabilities 87,73
_ _ﬁ;'f'.:_@.!-_ﬂ.i e : 1,689.62
.: | R R R S e e IJTT,-‘E?
identifiable net assets at fair value 7,428.52
“ | AL 7.948.15
; "= 5,001 62
LI i1 (7,428.52)
Ill- . WL r g r !'ﬂllﬁ
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Fhysicswallah Private Limitod

CIN: UBD9O0UPIO20PTCI29223

Nofes ta consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
AU amownts in INK [ocs, excepe as otherwise statead)

43 Additional Information to the Consolidated Financial Statements, as required under Schedule 11 of ihe Companies Act, 2003 of entithes

consolidated as subsidiarics
Follawing is the share of nct assets and the profit or loss of the entitics whech have been consolidated for preparation of the corsolidated financial

datements of Physics Wallah Private Limsted for the financial vear ended March 31, 2023

Name of C Net axsets Share in profit or (foss)
= g { Total assets minus Total
labilites)
Amount Asa % of Amount Asa % of
consolidated nel consobidated
nanels Share in profit or
{loss)
Physics Wallah Private Limited SR04 8 100 58% 517:29 58I
Utkarsh Clases & Edutech Private Limited m:;g: mﬂéﬁﬁi -
Prepanline Futunist Private Limited {30.68) ! - .
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited (391.36) (040 (555.51) (62.58%)
iNewron Intellipence Private Limited 575.20 0.59%% (391.3%) EHW"-P‘
Knowledge Planct Holdings Limited {43.12) {0.04%) = -
o Inter-company Elimination and Consolidation Adjustments (8,849.06) (9.08%) 131723 148 40%
L : 7746558 10000%|  $ST63  100.00%

. of net asscts and the profit or loss of the entities which have been consolidated for prepasation of the consolidated firancial
Wallah Private Limited for the financial year ended March 31, 2022:

[Name of Company ; Net assets Share in profit or (loss)

oK (Total assets minus Total
= > m‘
' Bt An Amount Asa v of
2 consalidated net , consolidated
assels Share in profit or
| _ e {loss)
= T 10,468 96 98.64% 331815 33.76%

e




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: US0900U'PZ020P TC129223

Nates to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(AN aomouents in INR locs, except as othenwive sfated)

44 Capital and other commitmenis — i ACal
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
iy Fair value of redemption liability with respect to put option available with the minority
) sharehalders of iNeuron Intelligence Private Limited _ 17,240.00
~ Fair value Hm liakility with respect i call option with the Company o acquire
D minority interest shareholder of Preponline Futurist Private Limited 89899
 Fair value of forward contract entered by the company to purchase 49% stake acquisiton of
“_“’ Utkarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited 11,106 20
(iv) Undrawn bank overdrall facility with HDFC bank 1,500.00

45 Contingent liabilities
The Group does not forsee any liability arising in future on account of any litigation/event ot accounted for.

46 Minority interest

As at Asal
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
926509 .
43747 -
4.734.10 z
14.440.66 =




Physicswallah Private Limited
CIN: US0900U P20Z0E T 9228

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
f Al amounts in INR lacs. except as otherwise stated)

47 Additional regulatory information required by Schedule 111

i} The Group does not have any Benami property, where any procceding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any
Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act {088 and rules made thercunder

i) The Group has balance with the below-mentioned companics struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 360 of
Companies Act, 1956

Mame of struck off | Wature of iransactions Ouistanding Balances (INR in Lacs)
Company with struck-ofT Relationship with the
Company Struck off company, if any,
Asal Asal 1o be disclosed
Adarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Affinity Excellence Student support service 019 = |-
Private Limited
iNeuron Angel Acquisition of Share 5.00 -
Investments Private Capital
Limted

iii} The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet 1o be registered with ROC beyond the statulory period

iv) The Group has not been declared wilful defaulier by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

+} The Group has neither traded nor invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year ended March 31, 2023, Further,
the Group has also not received any deposits or advances from amy person for the purpose of trading or investing i Lrypto Currency or
Yirtual Currency.

vi} The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium of any other sources of kind of funds) 1o
any other person(s) or enfity(ies), including foreign entities {*Intermediaries™) with the understanding (whether recorded n W riting o
otherwize) that the Intermediary shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons of entilics whentified 1n any manner whatsoever by or on behalfl of the company
{“Ultimate Beneficiaries”). or
{ii) provide any guaranice, security of the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Bensficiancs
vii) The Group has not recerved any fund from any persan(s) or entity(ies), including forcign entitics (“Funding Party™) with the understanding
{whether recorded in writing or oltherwise) thal the company shall
{i) dircctly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons of entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
{Ultimate Beneficianes), or
{il) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries
viii) The Group does not have any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act. 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act,
1961}, Further, there was no previously unrecorded income and no additional assets were required to be recarded in the books of account
during the year.
ix) The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on
number of Layers) Rules, 2017.and there are no companics beyond the specified layers.
%) The Group has not enfered into any scheme of armangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year
xi) The Group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment o intangible assets or both during the current or Previous year,

4% Segment Reporting

The Group is engaged in the business of education. Considering the nature of group business and operations, there are no separate reportable
segments (business andor geographical) in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard 17 *Segment Reporting”.

(This space fuas been intentionally left blank)




Physiciwallah Private Limited
CIN: USOMoLP2020PTCI 19223
Notes to consolidated Mnancial statements for the year eaded March 31, 2023
TAN counts fn INR focs, excest ax otherie mated)

43 Derivative instruments, foreign ¢ urrescy exposure snd risk managemeni
The Group is expesed to market risk which includes fareign currency risk and interest rate risk. The Ciroup's senior management oversees
the management of these risks. The Group senior management is sipporied by a financial risk commiriee that advises on francial risks and
the appropriate financial risk governance framework. The fnancial risk commibttes provides sssurance lo the Group's senfor mansgerment that
the Group fimancial risk activities arc governed by appropriate polices and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and
managed in sccordance with the Group podicies and risk objectives

e Giroup exposure in foreign currency at the end of reporting period

Particulars [ As at March 31, 2023 As at Mareh 31, 20723
Amouant in foreign Amount s INR ket Amount In forefgn Amoust s INR lncs
3 U.TETHEF CUTTERLY
| Tmde Payahle USD 19 403 32 40 - =
Trade receivable USD 51,413 4237 - -
Advances fo Foreign UsSD 10482 087 -
[Trade receivabhe AED 862,124 192.94 -

50 The Group had entered into bisiness purchase agreement with proprietor of TopTak on January 01, 2023 to acquire its coaching class
business, Subsequent 1o year ended March 31, 2023, both parties had entered into sepamfiion sgreement on Seplember 14, 2023 For
terminating the business purchase agreements, In pursuant to separation agreement, the group has impaired the Goodwill amounting 1o INR.

105.98 lacs and Brand amounting to INR 173,60 laes.

S1 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company except the backup of the books of sccount and
other books and papers maintsined in electronic mode has mot been maintained in relation to two of it's Indian subsidiary Company’s, on
servers physically located in [ndin on daily basis. Further, one of the Indian subsidiary Company does not have server physically located in
India for the daily backup of the books of account and ather boaks and papers maintained in electronic mode.

52 Subsequent to the year ended March 31, 2023, the Group acquired 60.35% stake in Xylem Leaming Private Limited for a consideration of
INR. 6,850,530 kacs on June 17, 2023,

=3 Previous year figures have been audited by a finm of chartered accountants other than 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLF and have been
regrouped and re- srranged wherever RECESSALY.

For and on behalf of the Baard of Directors af
Physicswallah Private Limited

For 5.R. Bailiboi & Associaies LLP
Chartered Accaunlants

Fu No.: 101049W/EIN0004
'r-
2 -
- T
per Yineel Kedia teck Booh Hahul Verma
Partner iTECHnr Directa omipany Secretary
Membership no.: 212230 DIN: 07113666 DiIN: 08 Membership No. A46710
Place: Gurugram Flace: Moida Placa: Maida Place: Woida

Date: December 24 2023 Date: December 24, 2023 Date; December 24, 2023 Date: December 24, 2023
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PORT OF BOARD OF DI TORS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31STMARCH 2023
Dear Members,

Your directors have pleasure in presenting this Annual report on the affairs of the Company
together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended on 31st March 2023.

1. State of Company’s Affairs
(Rs. in Lacs.)

Particulars 31st March, 2023 | 31st March, 2022
Revenue from operations 77,176.63 23,247.77
Other income 2,626.85 162.05
‘Total income j 79,803.48 | 23,409.82
Total expenses 77,700.31 10,316.31
 Profit before tax . 210347 | 13,093.51
Tax expense:
(a) Current tax 1,452.00 33,21.66
(b) Deferred tax (3.51)
Profit for the Year o ‘ ~ 1,60483| = 9,775.36

During the year under review, the Company has earned total Income of Rs. 79,803.48/-Lacs as
compared to Rs. 23,409.82/- Lacs earned in the previous year. Company has earned Profif after
tax of Rs. 1604.83/-Lacs in the current year as compared to Profit after Tax of Rs 9775.36/- Lacs

A e
T LU DT O VU US Y dL .

2. Change in the nature of business

There is no change in the nature of the business of the company.

3. Transfer to reserves

The company has not transferred any amount from profit to general reserve.

4. Dividend

No dividend is recommended during the financial period 2022-23.

5. Annual Return

As per the requirements of Section 92(3) of the Act and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, the extract of the Annual Return for FY 2022-23 is available
on Company’s website i.e. https://www.pw.live/ having URL https://www.pw.live/investor-
relations.
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6.

(D

(i)

Meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company

During the year 2022-23, the Board of Directors met 22 times as mentioned in Annexure I (PART
A) attached below.

During the year 2022-23, the members of CSR Committee met 2 times as mentioned in Annexure
I (PART B) attached below.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement under section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect
to Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that:

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2023, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures and there is no material departures from the same;

the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2023 and of the profit and loss of the company
for that period;

(iii) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting

records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and the directors had

10.

devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Declaration By Independent Directors

Particulars of Declaration by Independent Director as required U/s. 134 (3)(d) of the Companies
Act, 2013, is not applicable to your Company.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company

The provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013 and rules made thereunder pertaining
to the Constitution of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee don’t apply to our Company.

Statutory Auditor & Audit Report

Your board proposes the re-appointment of M/s S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered
Accountants, having firm registration no. 101049W/E300004 as Auditors of the Company, who
were appointed in EOGM held on 03/11/2022 subject to reappointment at ensuing Annual
General Meeting for a term of four years from conclusion of this AGM to the conclusion of the
AGM for the financial year ending 2026-27. The Company has received letter from the Auditors
to the effect that their appointment, if made, would be within the prescribed limits under Section

Plot No. B-8, Tower A 101-119, Noida One, 1st Floor, Sector 62, Noida, UP-201309
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11.

12.

139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not disqualified for such appointment within
the meaning of Section 141 of the.Companies Act 2013.

Internal Auditor: During the financial year the Company has appointed M/s. M/s Grant
Thornton Bharat LLP, as Internal Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2022-23, as per
Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Comments/Qualifications If Any, in the Audit Report on Financial Statements

The notes referred to in the Auditor's Report are self-explanatory and as such they do not call
for any further explanation as required under section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 except as
mentioned below.

Auditor Comments in Audit Report

1. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not established
its internal financial control with reference to financial statements on criteria based on or
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued
by ICAL Because of this reason, we are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to provide a basis for our opinion whether the Company had adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements as at March 31, 2023 and whether such
internal financial controls were operating effectively.

2. All Property, Plant and Equipment, which were planned to be verified during the year, were
not physically verified by the management in the current year in accordance with a planned
program of verifying them over a period of two years.

3. We were unable to obtain any of the internal audit reports of the Company under the
provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, hence the internal audit reports have
not been entirely considered by us.

Board’s Comments thereon;

1. The Board of Directors acknowledges the auditors' comments regarding the establishment
of internal financial control as per the criteria outlined in the Guidance Note issued by ICAL
We are committed to addressing this concern promptly and are in the process of enhancing
our internal financial control systems to align with the recommended standards. We
appreciate the auditors’ guidance and will ensure that corrective actions are implemented
to establish and strengthen internal financial controls.

2. Asthis marks the initial year of significant plant and machinery acquisitions by the company.
Consequently, a comprehensive verification of all assets has been undertaken during the
acquisition process or upon installation, as applicable. The management has formulated a
two-year plan for the physical verification of assets, taking into account the company's
operational size and geographical spread. Going forward, the management is committed to
conducting physical asset verifications in accordance with the established plan in the
upcoming years.

3. The Company has engaged Grant Thornton Bharat LLP as its internal auditors. The Company
is currently awaiting the report from the Internal auditors. It is expected to be Once received,
the Company will promptly share the report with the Statutory Auditors.

Plot No. B-8, Tower A 101-119, Noida One, 1st Floor, Sector 62, Noida, UP-201309
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13. Fraud reported by Auditor

No Fraud has been reported by auditors under sub-section (12) of section 143 other than those
which are reportable to the Central government.

14. Audit Committee of the Company
The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act 2013 and rules made thereunder pertaining
to the Constitution of the Audit Committee don’t apply to our Company.

15. Cost Records
The company is not required to maintain Cost Records as specified by the Central government
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and accordingly such accounts
and records are not made and maintained.

16. Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186
Particulars of the loans given, investment made, or guarantee given or security provided and the
purpose for which the loan or guarantee or security is proposed to be utilized by the recipient

of the loan or guarantee or security are provided in Notes to the Financial Statements. Further
details of the Loans and Investments as on end of the financial year are as below.

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS GIVEN

The Company has following Loans, Guarantee given, and Investments made under section 186
of the Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year ended 31st March 2023:

Sr. Date of 0/s Amount
No. Transaction Particular/Purpose/Nature of Transaction (in Lacs)

1 12.11.2022 Loan to Pen Pencil Edu Services Private Limited 2501.24
2 Various Dates Investment in Unquoted Shares Instruments 28,832.06
3 Various Dates Investment in Quoted Shares Instruments 0.03
4 Various Dates Others (Loans to Employees) 72.61

17. Related Party Contracts/ Transactions

The Company is required to enter into various Related Parties Transactions as defined under
Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with related parties as defined under Section 2 (76) of
the said Act. Further all the necessary details of the transaction entered with the related parties
in Form no. AOC-2 for your kind perusal and information and enclosed in Annexure IL
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18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Material Changes between the date of the Board report and end of financial year

There are no Material changes have occurred between the end of the financial year of the
company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report, which is affecting
the financial position of the company.

Additional Information -

A. Conservation of Energy: Particulars of energy Conservation required U/s. 134(3)(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 is not applicable on
your Company.

B. Technology absorption: The Company has no R & D Dept. & no expenditure either capital
or on recurring A/c has been incurred during the year under review.

C. Foreign Exchange Earning & Outgo: As per Annexure III attached below.

Risk management policy

Risks are events, situations or circumstances which may lead to negative consequences on the
Company's businesses. Risk management is a structured approach to manage uncertainty. A
formal enterprise-wide approach to Risk Management is being adopted by the Company and key
risks will now be managed within a unitary framework. As a formal roll-out, all business
divisions and corporate functions will embrace Risk Management Policy and Guidelines and
make use of these in their decision making. Identified Key business risks and their mitigation
are considered in the annual/strategic business plans and in periodic management reviews.

The risk management process, over the period of time will become embedded into the
Company’s business systems and processes, such that our responses to risks remain current and
dynamic.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Pursuant to the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules 2014; the Board has undertaken the CSR activities as
per Rule 9 of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. The details of CSR
activities for the financial year 2022-23 forms part of this Board report in Annexure IV attached
below.

Subsidiary Company, Joint Venture or Associate Company

The Company does not have any Joint Venture and associate Company. However, the Company
has Six Subsidiary Companies i.e., PW Foundation (Section 8 Company), Penpencil Edu Services
Private Limited, Preponline Futurist Private Limited, Utkarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited,
Ineuron Intelligence Private Limited and Knowledge Planet Holding Limited. Further all the
necessary details of the transaction with respect to Subsidiary Company are attached herewith
in Form no. AOC-1 for your kind perusal and information in Annexure V attached below
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23. Public Deposits
The Company has not accepted any fixed deposits from the public within the meaning of the

section 73 of Companies Act, 2013. The details of loan received from directors and their
relatives, not covered under definition of deposits as per rule 2(1)(c)(viii) mentioned below;

LOANS RECEIVED FROM DIRECTORS AND RELATIVES

Sr. DIRECTOR/ RELATIVE 0/S AMOUNT AS ON YEAR
No. NAME OF DIRECTOR END
NIL

24. Details of directors or key managerial personnel

During the year under review, there is no change in the composition of the board of directors.
Details of directors or key managerial personnel as mentioned in Annexure VI attached below.

25. Compliance With Secretarial Standards

The Board of Directors affirm that the Company has Complied with the applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Companies Secretaries of India (SS-1 and SS-2) respectively
relating to the Board and the General Meeting.

26. Internal Financial Control

The Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting, commensurate with the nature of its business, size, scale and complexity of
the Company. The Statutory Auditor has also commented on the internal financial control on
financial reporting in their report. Further, the said comments and the board’s reply forms part
of Point 12 (Auditor’s Comments) of the present Directors Report.

27. Vigil Mechanism

Your Company has established a mechanism called Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy for
the directors and employees to report to the appropriate authorities off unethical behavior,
actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy and
provides safeguards against victimization of employees who avail the mechanism.

28. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operations in future

There were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operations in future.
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29.

30.

31.

Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investors’ Education & protection Fund

Since the Company has not declared any dividend during the year under review. Therefore, the
provision of Section 125 of the Companies Act 2013 doesn’t apply to the Company.

Disclosures under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013)

The Company is committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment to its employees.
The company has constituted Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Your director further state that during the year under review, there was no cases filed pursuant
to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013)

Acknowledgments

Your directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-
operation received from the financial institutions, Government Authorities, customers, vendors
and members during the year under review. Your directors also wish to place on record their
deep sense of appreciation for the committed services by the Company’s executives, staff and
workers.

For Physicswallah Private Limited

.
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Pr teé‘k_’.i?yddb >/ Gaurav Choudhai‘y'
Director - Director
DIN: 7113666 DIN: 9374578

Address: 127, Mahaveer Ganj, Gali No. 3, Address: 331, UIT PLAT, Keshavpura,
Beawar, Ajmer, Rajasthan - 305901, India Kota, Rajasthan - 324005

Date: 24/12/2023
Place: Noida
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ANNEXUR TA

MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SN Date of Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors
Present
1 16.04.2022 4 4
2 21.04.2022 4 4
3 20.05.2022 4 4
4 30.05.2022 4 4
5 08.06.2022 4 4
6 10.06.2022 4 4
7 15.06.2022 4 4
8 16.06.2022 4 4
9 22.06.2022 4 4
10 27.06.2022 4 4
11 07.07.2022 4 4
12 11.07.2022 4 4
13 10.08.2022 4 4
14 21.09.2022 4 4
15 31.10.2022 4 4
16 12.11.2022 4 |_ 4
17 24.12.2022 4 ' 4
18 23.01.2023 4 4
19 14.02.2023 ' 4 4
20 21.02.2023 4 4
21 22.02.2023 4 4
22 29.03.2023 4 4
ANNEXURE I (PART B)
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Meeting

1 20.05.2022 3 3
2 29.03.2023 3 3
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ANNEXURE II
FORM NO. AQOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred
to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third
proviso thereto.

Details of con

n r transactions no

'slen

basis: Company has not entered into any
contract or arrangement or transactions with its related parties which is not at arm’s length during the year.

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm'’s length basis:
S. Names(s) of the related Nature of Duration of Salient terms of the | Dates(s) of | Amount
No. | party and nature of contracts/arrangemen | contracts/ contract or approval paid as
relationship t/transaction arrangement/ | arrangementor by the advances,
transaction transaction board, if if any
including the value, | any
if any
1 Penpencil Edu Services Legal and professional Annually At prevailing Market | 09.11.2023 | NIL
Private Limited (Subsidiary expenses Price
2 Company) Office expenses Annually 09.11.2023 | NIL
3 Sale of goods/services Annually 09.11.2023 | NIL
4 Professional fees Annually 16.04.2022 | NIL
5 Rental Income Annually Rs. 85,000/- 09.11.2023 | NIL
1 6 | = Interest on Borrowings | Annually Interest @8% P.A. 09.11.2023 | NIL
| 7 Alakh Pandey-Director Remuneration | Annually Rs. 457.62 Lacs 16.04.2022 | NIL
|8 Transfer of 09.11.2023
advertisement income
9 Rajat Pandey-Director Remuneration Annually Rs. 31.12 Lacs | 16.04.2022 | NIL
10 | Prateek Boob-Director Remuneration Annually Rs. 180.12 Lacs | 16.04.2022 | NIL
11 | Gaurav Choudhary-Director | Remuneration Annually Rs. 23.80 Lacs 16.04.2022 | NIL
12 | Sonal Mundhra (Relative of Remuneration Annually Rs. 61.31 Lacs 16.04.2022 | NIL
KMP)
13 PW Foundation CSR Expenditure Event Base Rs. 140.36 Lacs 16.04.2022 | NIL
(Subsidiary Company)
14 | Ineuron Intelligence Private | Professional fees Annually At prevailing Market | 09.11.2023 | NIL
Limited Price
(Subsidiary Company)
For Physicswallah Private Limited
A
P ateeﬁ(ﬂﬁbh'.- 02 Gaurav Choudhary
Director i Director

DIN: 7113666

Address: 127, Mahaveer Ganj, Gali No. 3,

Beawar, Ajmer, Rajasthan - 305901, India

Date: 24.12.2023
Place: Noida

DIN: 9374578

Kota, Rajasthan - 324005

Address: 331, UIT PLAT, Keshavpura,
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ANNEXURE III
FOREIGN EXCHANGE
Details of Earning in Foreign
Exchange
Current Year Previous Year

Export of goods calculated on FOB basis 0 0
Interest and dividend 0 0
Royalty 0 0
Know- how 0 0
Professional & consultation fees 0 0
Other income 335.66 Lacs 0
Total Earning in Foreign Exchange 335.66 Lacs 0
Details of Expenditure in Foreign Exchange

Import of goods calculated on CIF basis

(i)raw material 0 0
(ii)component and spare parts 0 0
(iii)capital goods 0 0
Expenditure on account of 0 0
(i) Royalty 0 0
(ii) Know- HOW 0 0
Professional & consultation fees 0 0
Interest 0 0
Other matters 332.26 Lacs 0
Dividend paid 0 0
Total Expenditure in foreign exchange 332.26 Lacs 0

For Physicswallah Private Limited

A

S ,u" .\ = /
" o

TN AN/ %o 55
Prateek-Booh (> Gaurav Chotudhary””
Director — Director ==
DIN: 7113666 DIN: 9374578

Address: 127, Mahaveer Ganj, Gali No. 3, Address: 331, UIT PLAT, Keshavpura,
Beawar, Ajmer, Rajasthan - 305901, India Kota, Rajasthan - 324005

Date: 24/12/2023
Place: Noida
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ANNEXURE IV
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES AS PER SECTION 135 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
1. | Brief outline on CSR policy of the Company:
PHYSICSWALLAH PRIVATE LIMITED's CSR activities align with its Vision and Mission, to address community
needs. Following CSR guidelines, the focus areas include eradicating hunger, poverty, and malnutrition; promotion
healthcare and preventive measures; ensuring environmental sustainability; supporting education and vocational
skills;
The CSR Committee so constituted formulated Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR Policy) as on
15/09/2021 and the Board of Directors of the Company (‘Board’) has approved the same as per recommendation
of CSR Committee.
2. | Composition of the CSR Committee:
Sr.No. | Name of Director Designation/  Nature  of | Number of meetings | Number of meetings of
Directorship of CSR Committee | CSR Committee attended
held during the year | during the year
1. Alakh Pandey Chairman and Director 2 2
2. Rajat Pandey Member and Director 2 2
3. Prateek Boob Member and Director 2 2
3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board
are disclosed on the website of the company: https://www.pw.live/
4. | Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.: Not Applicable ,
5. |a) Average net profit of the Company for last three financial year:- |
Profit Calculated as per provisions of Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 for last three years:
*2020-21 1 Rs. 9,25,54,068
2021-22 :Rs. 1,31,08,34,881
Average net profit : Rs. 70,16,94,475
The company was incorporated on 06/06/2020
b) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5): Rs. 1,40,33,889/-
¢) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmers or activities of the previous financial years: NIL
d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any: NIL
e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (b+c-d): Rs. 140,33,889/-
6. |a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): Company spent
on CSR Projects other than Ongoing Project
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
S.NN. | Name of Item Loc | Location of | Amoun | Amount | Amount Mode of | Mode of
Project from the | al the project | t spentin | transferred | impleme | implementation -
list of are allocat | the tounspent | ntation - | through
activities | a ed for | current | CSRaccount | Direct implementation
in yes the financial | for the (yes/No | agency
schedule | /no project | year project as )
VII of (in Rs.) per Section
the act 135(6)
State | Dist Name CSR
Registra
tion No.
1 Health (1) No | Hary | Gur | Rs. Rs. NIL No PW CSR0O00
Care ana ugr | 140.36 | 140.36 Found | 25636
am | Lacs Lacs ation
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b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL

¢) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NIL

d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (a+b+d+e): Rs. 140.36 Lacs

e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Amount unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount Spent for | Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified under
the Financial Year (in | Unspent CSR Account as per | Schedule VII as per second proviso to Section 135(5)
Rs.) Section 135(6)

Amount Date of Name of Fund Amount Date of
Transfer Transfer

Rs. 140.36 Lacs - - E= == o

f) Excess amount for set-off, if any

Sr. No. Particular Amount in Rs.
{Lacs)
(€3] (2) (3)
1. Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5)* 140.34
2. Total amount spent for the Financial Year 140.36
3. Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i}] 0.02
4. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the 0
previous financial years, if any
5. Amount available for set-off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv}] 0.02

Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not Applicable

Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent
in the Financial Year: No

Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per Section
135(5): Not Applicable

. i

Prateek Boob — Gaurav Choudhary

For Physicswallah Private Limited

Director , Director
DIN: 7113666 DIN: 9374578

Address: 127, Mahaveer Ganj, Gali No. 3, Address: 331, UIT PLAT, Keshavpura,
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ANNEXURE V
FORM NO.AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint
ventures

Part A : Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amount in Rs. Lacs)

Sl Particulars 1) (2) 3) “4) (5) (6)
No.
1. Name of the Pen Pencil PwW Ineuron Utkarsh Preponline | Knowledge
subsidiary Edu Foundation | Intelligence | Classes & Futurist Planet
Services Pvt Private Edutech Private Holding
Ltd Limited Private Limited Limited
(32.68%) Limited (10%) (100%)
(51%)
2. Date since when 30.03.2022 | 25.02.2022 | 23.12.2022 | 18.02.2023 | 17.03.2023 | 28.12.2022
subsidiary was
acquired
3. Reporting period for - -- - -- b2 -=
the subsidiary
concerned, if different
from the holding
company'’s reporting
period | 1 o ol
| 4. Reporting currency NA NA NA NA NA AED
| and Exchange rateas |
on the last date of the
relevant Financial
year in the case of
foreign subsidiaries
54 Share capital 1.00 Company 13.60 20.90 1.00 10,000
Limited by
Guarantee
6. Reserves & surplus (391.36) (1.45) 569.92 8138.89 (31.68) (282685)
7. Total assets 3574.62 0.25 2027.83 10979.90 144.93 4692154
8. Total Liabilities 3965.98 1.70 1444.31 2820.12 175.61 4964839
9. Investments -- -- 5.00 -- -- -=
10. Turnover 1619.47 140.34 2725.14 15893.14 198.42 9368400
11. Profit before taxation | (664.08) (1.45) (2674.02) 1371.40 22.98 (496840)
12. Provision for taxation | 108.57 - (21.32) 619.87 0.19 --
13. Profit after taxation (555.51) -- (2652.70) 751.53 23.18
14. Proposed Dividend - -~ - -- --
15. % of shareholding 100% NIL 32.68% 51.00% 10% 100%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.
3. Point no. 2 (Date since when subsidiary was acquired) represents the date of agreement between
the Parent Company and respective Subsidiary Companies.
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate
Companies and Joint Ventures

S.No. | Particulars (1)
1. Name of associates/Joint Ventures NIL
2. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date NIL
g8 Date on which the Associate/Joint Venture was NIL
acquired
4. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the NIL
company on the year end
(a) No. of Shares NIL
(b) Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint
Venture
(c) Extend of Holding% NIL
5. Description of how there is significant influence
6. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not
consolidated
7. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest NIL
audited Balance Sheet
8. Profit/Loss for the year NIL -
i. Considered in Consolidation NIL
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation NIL i i

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations.
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.
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DETAILS OF DIRECTO

ANNEXURE VI

R KEY MANAGERIAL PE NNEL

SN

DIN

NAME

ADDRESS

DESIGNATION

DATE OF
APPOINTMENT

08755719

ALAKH PANDEY

RK-27, KALINDIPURAM,
ALLAHABAD, UTTAR PRADESH,
211011, INDIA

Director

06,/06/2020

09374578

GAURAV
CHOUDHARY

331 UIT PLAT, KESHAVPURA,
KOTA, RAJASTHAN, 324005,
INDIA

Director

18/10/2021

07113666

PRATEEK BOOB

127 MAHAVEER GAN]J,GALI
NO.3,BEAWER, AJMER
RAJASTHAN, 305901, INDIA

Director

01/07/2020

08755720

RAJAT PANDEY

FLAT NO. A-101, UG FLOOR
BLOCK C-2 BUILDING SKANDA
APARTMENT LUKER,
ALLAHABAD, UTTAR PRADESH,
211011, INDIA

Director

06/06/2020
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